NAIROBI CITY COUNTY



MTEF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION REPORT FINANCIAL YEAR 2018/2019

FEBRUARY 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER	1:	BACKGROUND	1
1.0	Intro	duction	1
1.1	Cont	ent	2
1.2	Legal	framework	3
CHAPTER	2: MI	ETHODOLOGY OF THE CONSULTATIVE PROCESS	4
2.0	Adve	rtisements	4
2.1	Targe	et Population	4
2.2	Num	ber of Wards	4
2.3	Team	Composition	5
2.4	Focus	s Group Discussion	5
CHAPTER	THRE	E: FINDINGS OF MTEF 2017/2018	7
3.1	ISSUE	ES RAISED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE 2017/2018 BUDGET ESTIMATES	7
3.1.1	TRAN	NSPORT, ROADS AND PUBLIC WORKS	7
3.1.2	HEAL	TH SERVICES	8
3.1.3	OFFI	CE OF THE GOVERNOR & DEPUTY GOVERNOR, SECURITY AND COMPLIANCE	9
3.1.4	ICT 8	E-GOVERNMENT	9
3.1.5	EDU(CATION, CHILDREN, SPORTS, CULTURE, YOUTH, GENDER AFFAIRS AND SOCIAL SERVICES	5.
3.1.6	WAT	ER, ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY & NATURAL RESOURCES	. 10
3.1.7	AGRI	CULTURE, LIVESTOCK, FISHERIES & FORESTRY	. 11
3.1.8	COU	NTY PUBLIC SERVICE MANAGEMENT BOARD	. 12
3.1.9	TRAD	DE, TOURISM & INDUSTRIALIZATION	. 12
3.1.10	URBA	AN PLANNING AND LANDS	. 12
3.1.11	URBA	AN RENEWAL AND HOUSING	. 13
3.1.12	FINA	NCE & ECONOMIC PLANNING	. 14
3.2	SUM	MARY OF ISSUES RAISED DURING WARD-BASED CONSULTATIVE FORUMS	. 14
3.2.1	HEAL	TH SECTOR	. 14
3.2.2	ROAI	DS, TRANSPORT, PUBLIC WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE	. 15
3.2.3	WAT	ER, ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES	. 15
3.2.4	EDU	CATION, YOUTH AFFAIRS, CHILDREN, SPORTS&CULTURE AND SOCIAL SERVICES	. 15

3.2.5	TRADE, COMMERCE, COOPERATIVES AND TOURISM	16
3.2.6	GOVERNOR'S OFFICE	16
3.2.7	URBAN PLANNING AND LANDS	16
3.2.8	AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK DEVELOPMENT, FISHERIES AND FORESTRY	16
3.2.9	PUBLIC SERVICE MANAGEMENT	17
3.2.10	URBAN RENEWAL, HOUSING AND BUILDING SERVICES	17
3.2.11	FINANCE AND ECONOMIC PLANNING	17
3.3	WARD-BASED FINDINGS	17
3.3.1	KAHAWA WARD	17
3.3.2	KASARANI WARD	18
3.3.3	KIAMIKO WARD	19
3.3.4	LINDI WARD	20
3.3.5	MAKINA WARD	21
3.3.6	UMOJA 1 WARD	22
3.3.7	PUMWANI WARD	22
3.3.8	HARAMBEE WARD	23
3.3.9	KAHAWA WEST	23
3.3.10	HOSPITAL WARD	24
3.3.11	NGEI WARD	25
3.3.12	KARIOBANGI WARD	26
3.3.13	EASTLEIGH NORTH WARD	26
3.3.14	KOROGOCHO WARD	26
3.3.15	UTALII WARD	27
3.3.16	VIWANDANI WARD	28
3.3.17	KITISURU WARD	28
3.3.18	MAKONGENI WARD	28
3.3.19	KAREN WARD	29
3.3.20	SOUTH C WARD	29
3.3.21	MWIKI WARD	30
3.3.22	WOODLEY WARD	30
3.3.23	MATHARE NORTH WARD	31
3.3.24	NAIROBI WEST WARD	32

3.3.25	AIRBASE WARD	32
3.3.26	CALIFORNIA WARD	33
3.3.27	EASTLEIGH SOUTH WARD	34
3.3.28	MARINGO/HAMZA WARD	34
3.3.29	HURUMA WARD	35
3.3.30	LAINI SABA WARD	36
3.3.31	MLANGO KUBWA WARD	37
3.3.32	MOWLEM WARD	38
3.3.33	RIRUTA WARD	39
3.3.34	UPPER SAVANNAH WARD	40
3.3.35	KWA REUBEN WARD	40
3.3.36	MUGUMO-INI WARD	41
3.3.37	PANGANI WARD	41
3.3.38	UMOJA 2 WARD	42
3.3.39	DANDORA 1 WARD	43
3.3.40	DANDORA 3 WARD	43
3.3.41	DANDORA 4 WARD	44
3.3.42	EMBAKASI WARD	45
3.3.43	KARIOKOR WARD	46
3.3.44	KAYOLE NORTH WARD	47
3.3.45	KAYOLE SOUTH WARD	48
3.3.46	KILELESHWA WARD	49
3.3.47	KILIMANI WARD	49
3.3.48	KWA-NJENGA WARD	50
3.3.49	KWARE WARD	51
3.3.50	NAIROBI SOUTH WARD	52
3.3.51	GATINA WARD	53
3.3.52	RUAI WARD	53
3.3.53	ROYSAMBU WARD	54
3.3.54	DANDORA WARD	55
3.3.55	MABATINI WARD	55
3.3.56	UTHIRU RUTHIMITU WARD	56

3.3.57	ZIMMERMAN WARD	57
3.3.58	WAITHAKA WARD	58
3.3.59	LUCKY SUMMER WARD	59
3.3.60	UTAWALA WARD	60
3.3.61	WOODLEY WARD	60
3.3.62	PIPELINE WARD	61
3.3.63	NJIRU WARD	62
3.3.64	KARURA WARD	63
3.3.65	LAND MAWE WARD	64
3.3.66	IMARA DAIMA WARD	65
3.3.67	KABIRO WARD	65
3.3.68	LOWER SAVANNA WARD	65
3.3.69	NG'ANDO WARD	66
3.3.70	KOMAROCK WARD	66
3.3.71	KARIOBANGI NORTH WARD	67
3.3.72	KAWANGWARE WARD	67
3.3.73	MIHANG'O WARD	68
3.3.74	NAIROBI CENTRAL WARD	69
3.3.75	SARANG`OMBE WARD	69
3.3.76	MATOPENI WARD	70
3.3.77	KAYOLE CENTRAL WARD	71
3.3.78	BABA DOGO WARD	72
3.4	WARDS WHERE MTEF MEETINGS FAILED	72
CHAPTER	4: CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	73

CHAPTER 1: BACKGROUND

1.0 Introduction

The Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) is a three-year financial rolling plan in which the first year translates into the annual budget. The key objective of the MTEF is to establish a link between the policies of the national and county agenda and the outputs envisaged and the budget allocations. Under the MTEF process, the emphasis is on a bottom up approach whereby the beneficiaries are consulted on their needs and priorities which are costed and sequenced for budgeting. The consultations ensure that the needs fit within the resource constraints and that they are fully funded.

Further, MTEF provides a guide on costing of devolved functions within the county in a manner that remedies economic disparities, through economic optimization of the resource envelope. The MTEF will ensure good governance, integrity, transparency, accountability and sustainable development as recognized in Chapter six and Article ten of the Constitution of Kenya. The constitution stipulates that members of the public have to be involved in budgeting for the expenditure by the county governments. Nairobi City County has adopted and currently using Medium Term Expenditure Framework in its budgeting. Budgeting based on MTEF has improved the efficiency of utilization of resources with regard to programs within the sectors in the county.

Nairobi City County made an invitation to the public to participate in the public hearings and ward-based public sector consultative forums for preparation of MTEF budget Financial Year 2018/2019.

The objectives of the MTEF and public hearing forums carried out in the County includes;

- Obtaining issues and proposals from the public to be included in the final county budget estimates of FY 2018/2019.
- Providing information to help members of the public to understand the plans the various sectors have put in place over the medium term.
- Obtain feedback from the public on the proposed alternatives for decision making.
- Ensuring that concerns by the members of the public are considered throughout the budget decision making process, particularly in the development of decision criteria options.
- Ensuring that sector allocations reflect aspirations of the public.
- Collaborating with the public to develop decision criteria and alternatives and identify the preferred solution.
- Empowering the public by placing final decision making authority in their hands.

1.1 Content

This report gives development challenges/issues members of the public face together with their suggested proposed projects or actions to address them that should be included in the Financial Year 2018/2019 budget and future plans.

This report entails: the legal framework of the exercise as outlined by the constitution; the methodology that was used to obtain the data from the members of the public; findings obtained from public hearings at Charter Hall and from each ward. The findings were categorized in terms of the various County sectors to enable ease of use of this document by the various stakeholders. Finally, the report gives a brief conclusion based on the findings of the public participation exercise.

1.2 Legal framework

The Constitution makes citizen participation a central part of Kenya's governance system. Participation of the people is recognized in Article 10 of the Constitution of Kenya as one of our national values and principles of governance.

Further Article 174(c) provides that the object of devolution is to: "Enhance the participation of people in the exercise of the powers of the State and in making decisions affecting them." Article 184 (1) (c) also requires that mechanisms for participation by residents be included in the national legislation relating to urban areas and cities governance and management. The centrality of public participation cannot therefore be over-emphasized.

The MTEF consultation meetings as part of the county government budgeting process were prepared in accordance with the Public Financial Management Act (PFMA) and County Government Act (CGA). PFMA section 125(2) provides that the county executive committee for finance shall ensure that there is public participation in the budget process. The CGA provides for public participation in county planning in section 115(1). The act stipulates that public participation in the county planning process shall be mandatory and be facilitated through:-

- (a) Mechanisms provided for in part IV of CGA
- (b) Provision to the public of clear and unambiguous information of any matter under consideration in the planning process, including;-
- (i) Clear strategic environmental assessments
- (ii) Clear environment impact assessment reports
- (iii) Expected development outcomes; and
- (iv) Development options and their cost implementation

CHAPTER 2: METHODOLOGY OF THE CONSULTATIVE PROCESS

2.0 Advertisements

An advert inviting the public for the Public consultation forums at ward level was placed on the newspaper on the month of November 2017. It was followed by printing of posters of the same advert distributed to every ward through the ward administrator's offices. The advert outlined the dates and venues where the meetings were to be held in all the 85 wards. Formal communication was also made through a letter to all the ward administrators to assist in mobilization of the public and to ensure the selected venue for the exercise was ready to host the forum on the specified date and time.

2.1 Target Population

The target population for the MTEF exercise were the residents of Nairobi City County, the rate payers, any resident civic organization or non-governmental, private sector or labour organization with an interest in the governance of Nairobi City County. It also targeted non-resident persons who because of their temporary presence in the city make use of services or facilities provided by the county. It is in this respect that the public participation exercise targeted close to four million inhabitants of Nairobi. However, due to various engagements of the residents, only a small fraction of this number attended the meetings. Nevertheless, there was adequate representative for the exercise. The number who attended the public participation meetings ranged from 15 - 100 people in each ward.

2.2 Number of Wards

There are 85 wards in Nairobi City County. Each of these wards falls under one of 17 subcounties.

2.3 Team Composition

To cover the 85 wards, 5 teams were formed each comprising 5 members and a driver. Members in each team were drawn from various departments in the county; mainly Finance and Economic Planning, Engineering, Education and Social services.

2.4 Focus Group Discussion

During public hearings each sector presented to the members of the public the budget priorities for the financial years 2018/2019 and the medium term. Rapporteurs from the sectors and Finance and Economic Planning were taking notes and recording issues raised.

In ward-based public consultative forums, each team was tasked with the responsibility of conducting two focus group discussions in a day, one in the morning and the other in the afternoon during ward-based consultative forums. Each team comprised a team leader whose responsibility was to chair the discussions, a rapporteur who was tasked with the responsibility of taking notes and recording all the issues that were discussed and three other members who were to offer guidance to the public more so in their areas of expertise.

Each discussion began with introductions by the team members who served as the facilitators, depending on their number, the public were also given an opportunity to introduce themselves. The team leaders of each team then took charge and began by explaining the reason for conducting the exercise and the importance of public participation in the budgeting process. The team leader went on to explain the mandate of the county government outlining the various responsibilities of the county government and an overview of their implementation through the County sectors.

The floor was then opened to the public to raise any queries or comments which were mostly in regard to the projects they gave in the previous exercise and the status of those within their wards that were included in the budget. The discussions for projects for financial year 2017/2018 then kicked off with the team leader guiding the discussions. These involved members of the public giving their challenges/issues and proposing projects that they want the Nairobi City County to implement to tackle these challenges. This took place systematically by dealing with each sector at a time. The public were then asked to rank the projects in order of their priority so that urgency should be given to certain projects where funds were not available to finance all the projects.

The meetings concluded with the public giving remarks and expressing their views on various issues. Two members of the public were then asked to volunteer to act as representatives of the rest by signing on the sector information sheets and hence acting as witnesses that what was recorded was the true account of the discussions that took place during the meetings.

CHAPTER THREE: FINDINGS OF MTEF 2018/2019

3.1 ISSUES RAISED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE 2018/2019 BUDGET ESTIMATES

3.1.1 TRANSPORT, ROADS AND PUBLIC WORKS

ISSUE		ROPOSED INTERVENTION
Residents are not	-	The county residents are key stakeholders since they are the
considered stakeholders		employers of the county officials and are the ones that the
		services are delivered to.
Mfangano lane in a	-	The transport sector to lias with the environment sector to ensure
pathetic state in relation		the garbage is collected and the lane maintained.
to the county vision with	-	The public should own the projects and become responsible to
garbage all over		help the county government achieve its vision.
Mfangano-Hakati road	-	The sector to follow up and make sure the scowls between the
junction is incomplete		county government and the contractor (Ragot & Co. Limited) are
		settled for him to complete the work.
Lack of a pedestrian	-	The contractors that did the roads should be held to account to
walkway along Manyanja		ensure they complete the construction of the pedestrian
road, Mau Mau road and		walkways.
at No.10	-	Construction of a footbridge at No.10
	-	Site visits by county officials and follow up on projects to keep
		the contractors on check.
Street lighting not yet	-	Floodlights to be done in strategic places all over the county to
completed and some are		ensure that the installed street lights are backed.
very deem.	-	Regular maintenance of the installed street lights.
Inequitable infrastructure	-	Ensure equitable infrastructure development across all the sub
development in the sub		counties by preferably setting aside equalization funds for the
counties		less developed sub counties.
Poor station of Bus	-	Bus station to be prioritized once the project of rehabilitating bus
station bus terminus		terminus within the county kicks off.
Poor state of roads	-	Roads passing through market places should be regularly
passing through market		maintained regularly by the county government.
places as well as other	-	Public toilets and social halls should be maintained and kept
county infrastructure.		clean to help generate more income and ensure hygiene
		standards for the users.
Poor drainage system in	-	Expansion and rehabilitation of the drainages to hold the
the county		capacity of the growing population.
	-	Construction of new drainage systems in the affected areas.

Several infrastructure	-	Tenders should be floated for the contracts terminated once the
projects undertaken by		contractors fail to deliver as per the contract.
the county government	-	Pending court cases filed by the contractors should be hastened.
are stalled.		
Invasion of pedestrian	-	The residents should have the responsibility of sending away the
pathways by hawkers and		motorcycles and hawkers.
motorcycles	-	The residents should report any county official picking taxes
		from hawkers selling along the pedestrian pathways.
Accidents during road	-	Community information sessions should be held to notify the
construction		community of the projects to be undertaken.
	-	Once the work is done, the contractor should ensure all
		hazardous materials and sites are properly done.
Conflict between the	-	The projects done should be labeled especially Mashinani for the
county executive and the		residents to know who did the project and the financing.
assembly on projects		
undertaken.		
Disorder on Ronald	-	Maintaining order on streets where buses pick their passengers
Ngala street and its		(Ronald Ngala) especially in the evenings.
reduced size.		

3.1.2 HEALTH SERVICES

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
Lack of medication for	- Setting aside more allocation for medication of non-
non-communicable	communicable diseases (Glucometer, Insulin, Strip and the
diseases in public	Syringes) other than HIV.
hospitals.	- More allocation for MDR &FDR TB.
Inadequate ambulances	- More ambulances should be procured and distributed to
	Eastlands.
Ignorance amongst the	- A participatory community theatre should be held in
public	conjunction with the County government to educate the public
	about diseases.
Lack of medicine in public	- The sector MUST ensure that medicines are availed in all the
health facilities	health facilities.
	- The county government should invest in a state-of-the-art
	laboratory to generate more income for equipping the facilities.
Unhygienic state of the	- Maintain very hygiene standards in the CBD from public toilets
CBD	to the food vendors in the streets.
Inaccessibility of most	- Rehabilitation of special units in public facilities to comfortably
facilities by person with	accommodate persons with disabilities and children.
disabilities and children	

Misplaced priorities	- The sector should prioritize human health other than
	infrastructure.
Vague reports on health	- The reports should clearly state what project has been done and
projects	the location.
	- The costs (procurement of an ambulance & acquisition of open
	space) should be realistic and not exaggerated.

3.1.3 OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR & DEPUTY GOVERNOR, SECURITY AND COMPLIANCE.

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
Selective law enforcement	- Reprimanding officers who engage in the practice
by the city inspectorate	
Harassment of traders by	- Retraining of the Askaris to change their approach to people
city Askaris and hostility	and issues in general.
from the public.	
Traffic management	- Collaboration with the National government in traffic and
	inspectorate sections.
Disaster management	- Trainings of the citizens on safety awareness, first aid and
	disaster management.
Accessibility of the	- The Governor can be reached through any of the official social
Governor	media platforms for the county.
Public participation	- More funds should be allocated and proper adverts for public
	hearings done.
	- County Budget and Economic Forum should be conducted as
	well as other consultative meetings between the public and the
	county government.

3.1.4 ICT & E-GOVERNMENT

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
The report is inward	- Making the report focus on the citizens rather than the county
looking	government.
County media stations	- The county should own community radio stations as well as
	own TV channel
	- County government should partner with iHub and NaiLab to
	turn the city into an ICT hub

3.1.5 EDUCATION, CHILDREN, SPORTS, CULTURE, YOUTH, GENDER AFFAIRS AND SOCIAL SERVICES.

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
ECD centres	- ECD centres should be constructed in the informal settlement
	areas due to the high population.
	- More land should be acquired for the construction of ECD
	centres.
Children locked up in cells	- Putting up rehabilitation centres for the children, and not adult
with adults	cells, in every sub county.
Increased number of street	
children	
Youth empowerment	- Procurement of sports equipment for every ward.
	- Rehabilitation of community grounds and hiring coaches to help
	in talent development.
	- Setting up Resource centres and social halls in every ward to
	help the youth develop their talents and empower themselves.
Youth unemployment	- The county government should offer trainings for the youth and
	thereafter employ them in the various fields of training.
Ignorance amongst the	- The public should be enlightened and civic education carried
public	out to sensitize the public on the youth and gender issues.

3.1.6 WATER, ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY & NATURAL RESOURCES

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
Scarcity of water in	- Installation of ATM water dispensers (1200 No.) in the slum
informal settlements	areas
	- Department for informal settlements in Nairobi Water and
	Sewerage Company to address water problems in the slums
	- Drill boreholes for lasting water shortage solutions
Exploitative water prices	- Vandalization of water cartels by the authorities.
by cartels	- Securing water pipes to ensure they are not interfered with in
	any way by the cartels.
Poor drainage and sewer	- Replacement of old sewer pipes
systems	- Expansion of the drainage and sewer systems to help increase
	their holding capacity
	- Clean-up of drainages to remove dirt disposed into them.
	- Diversion of the sewer lines and drainages directed into the
	rivers and roads to their proper disposal areas.
Poor garbage collection	- Garbage collection trucks should be availed to all the wards.
and disposal	- Proper dumping sites to be identified and labeled to ease the

	-	 work of the trucks and their operators Innovation & creativity should be encouraged to help in waste management Power generation and income generating activities from the 	
		wastes should be encouraged.	
Inadequate manpower	-	Hire more personnel to help in the cleaning of markets as well	
		as garbage collection.	
Non-involvement of the	-	Involvement of the community in projects, from the initiation to	
community		the conclusion stage.	
Poor state of public toilets	-	Maintenance of public toilets, ensuring they are clean and well	
		taken care of.	

3.1.7 AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK, FISHERIES & FORESTRY.

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION	
Water shortage to	Water harvesting to ensure continuous farming even with	
facilitate agriculture	prolonged periods of drought.	
Ignorance of the public	- Sensitization of the public about the bylaws of the county with	
	regards to the sector	
	- Allocation of more funds for the sector to conduct public	
	sensitization.	
	- Advertisements on animal health and vaccination should be	
	conducted.	
Food wastage from the	- Monitoring and evaluation to ensure surveillance of food	
farm to the plate	security in the county.	
	- Training actors to add value on their farm products to ensure	
	prolonged lifespan.	
	- Collaborating with SMEs to come up with value added chain production.	
Bias distribution of	- More groups to apply for the projects, which will only be	
projects	installed based on availability of land accessible to the public.	
	Poultry units and greenhouses to be installed for the qualified groups.	
Beautification	Urban afforestation to be encouraged for beautification of residences.	
Stray dogs in the city	- Dog control and welfare act has been developed already	
	awaiting passing at the county assembly.	

3.1.8 COUNTY PUBLIC SERVICE MANAGEMENT BOARD

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION	
Lack of regret letters after	- The sector to ensure regret letters are done and sent to all job	
job application	applicants who don't qualify.	
Unfairness in employment	The public to apply for advertised jobs irrespective of who they	
	know or where they come from.	
Inaccessible job	Job advertisements to be done through various media (local	
advertisements modes	radio stations, TV stations as well as the newspapers), not only	
	the website.	

3.1.9 TRADE, TOURISM & INDUSTRIALIZATION

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION	
High licensing fees	Licensing should be done on shorter durations (3 months) to	
	make the amount affordable to the traders.	
Poor market conditions for	- Erection of modern markets and modern stalls (WDF) for the	
women in the slums	women, improvement of the market conditions and ensuring	
	security in the markets to attract more buyers.	
Art work	- The people involved in artwork should be trained on ways of	
	acquiring markets for their products and good trading practices.	
	- Creating an environment that will enable them sell their	
	products to tourists.	
Very high liquor licenses	The county government to come up with a small licensing board	
	that works with the National liquor licensing board to review	
	the charges paid.	
Double taxation of some	Review the county taxation by laws to ensure all the products	
products	are taxed once.	
Harassment of traders by	Retraining the officers to change their approach to Mwananchi	
City Askaris	and issues in general.	

3.1.10 URBAN PLANNING AND LANDS

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION	
Slum upgrading program	- Stalled due to political interference. Residents to sort out their	
in Huruma	political issues before seeking the help of the county	
	government.	
Information flow	- The public should help provide information to the county	
	government on the evils going on in their midst.	
Collapsing of houses	- All houses should have approvals from the county government	
	before they are put up.	
Demolition of structures	- Involvement of the community before structures are demolished	

	and vacation notice given in good time. All the marked houses should be vacated to enable the disciplinary committee formed between the national government and the county government to do its work well. Houses to be demolished are marked during official working hours by a team with job identification cards and not an individual.	
Public land encroachment by private developers	The county government should use their maps and available resources to repossess all the grabbed public land and use it to put up public facilities.	
Plan approval	Plans are submitted online and the duration taken for the approval to be out is between 2 weeks to 1 month. An integrated plan where all the engineers, planners, quantity surveyors as well as other professionals jointly approve the plan.	
Destruction due to poor planning.	Planning should take into consideration all the other infrastructure (water pipes and electricity lines) and ensure they are replaced in good time in case they are destroyed during the work.	

3.1.11 URBAN RENEWAL AND HOUSING

ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION	
Expensive houses by the	The county government in conjunction with the national	
private sector	government to construct houses, this will see them cheaper and	
	affordable to the people.	
	- Provision of good and affordable housing services to the low	
	income earners that cannot afford mortgages.	
	- Rent tribunal settles the scowls between the tenants and the	
	landlords.	
Very high land rates	- Land rates should be regulated so that is affordable to many	
	people.	
Rent defaulters	A taskforce already in place to enforce eviction of non-paying	
	occupants of Nairobi city county houses.	
Sector prioritization	The sector should spend more on reconstruction of houses other	
	than buying vehicles.	
Poor housing structures	Demolition of the bad houses to take place all over the county	
	for safety reasons.	
	Extensions are to be demolished with the help of political	
	leaders and the chiefs.	
Occupancy of county	- New tenancy cards to be developed that will clearly outline the	

government houses		guidelines.	
	-	Housing policy to be put in place to help the housing sector.	
Slum upgrading programs	-	The World Bank assists in doing this project in the whole	
		county.	

3.1.12 FINANCE & ECONOMIC PLANNING

ISSUE	ROPOSED INTERVENTION	
County asset register	The Asset management department should work on a	
	comprehensive asset register in accordance with the asset	
	management policy.	
Retention of public	- An allocation should be set aside to help retain public utilities	
utilities		
Licenses and daily cess	- Licenses are paid for permanent structure only while cess fees	
collection	are collected daily as per the county Finance act.	
	The Nairobi city county Finance act stipulates all the levies to	
	be paid, citizens should be conversant with the Act. It is	
	available in the County website and more copies availed in the	
	sub-county offices	
	- Licensing once done should cater for all other fees and rates are	
	reviewed annually.	
National Government debt	The senate should help the county government push the national	
to the County Government	government to settle the debts owed to the county.	

3.2 SUMMARY OF ISSUES RAISED DURING WARD-BASED CONSULTATIVE FORUMS

3.2.1 HEALTH SECTOR

- Lack of Public health Centers in the wards.
- No maternal services & equipment e.g. Macerator in most health centers in wards.
- Insecurity in public health facilities due to no perimeter fencing and gates.
- Lack of ambulance services within some wards.
- No facilitation for community health workers e.g. Protective garments and equipment like nose masks and gloves, for them.
- Increased prevalence of communicable and infectious diseases e.g. Tuberculosis and HIV/AIDS.
- Poor health service delivery due to inadequate skilled personnel and equipment.
- Lack of medical facilities, and skilled practitioners for patients with Non-communicable diseases (NCDs) e.g. Cancer, Diabetes, Heart & respiratory diseases, disorders, etc.
- No incinerators in some of the health centers.

- Insufficient Laboratories and laboratory equipment e.g. Reagents etc.
- Inadequate supply of drugs in health centers in the wards.
- Difficulties in accessing facilities
- Lack of Power-backup generators, clean water, toilets in health centers in the wards.
- Congestion in available health facilities within the wards.

3.2.2 ROADS, TRANSPORT, PUBLIC WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

- Poor state of access roads due to lack of maintenance within the wards.
- Nonfunctional Street lights within the ward.
- Rising cases of insecurity due to inadequate street lighting along the roads.
- Lack of motor-able and non-motor-able bridges connecting areas with water bodies such, rivers and streams.
- Lack of road signage and bumps in some wards.
- Poorly-maintained drainage systems especially, after construction of roads.
- Narrow drainage systems leading to overflow and flooding.
- Abandonment of roads construction projects, leading to incompletion of roads, even after scheduled duration.
- No designated bus stops/ laybys for vehicles.
- Lack of pedestrian walkways on some roads within the wards.
- Lack of Boda Boda shades.

3.2.3 WATER, ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES.

- Inadequacy and limited accessibility to clean and fresh water.
- Damaged water pipes, limiting access to water.
- Insufficient sanitation facilities in the ward e.g. Public toilets.
- Narrow sewer lines that occasionally burst.
- No utilization of open spaces for example, by tree-planting, establishment of leisure gardens.
- Poor waste management protocols e.g. No garbage collection points, No dumping sites, no garbage loading trucks, etc.
- No consideration for recycling plants at garbage holding grounds.
- Poor sewer line-connections within the wards, leading to environmental pollution, as a result of drainage into the rivers and other facilities.

3.2.4 EDUCATION, YOUTH AFFAIRS, CHILDREN, SPORTS&CULTURE AND SOCIAL SERVICES

- Lack of Early Child Development (ECD) Centers in the wards.
- No Resource Centers in the wards.
- No Social Hall for public meetings, for youth& children activities to take place in the ward.

- Rapid increase in street families and children.
- Poor state of sports ground in the ward, which need rehabilitation.
- Congestion in existing ECD centers, due to high population growth with no increase in spaces e.g. Classrooms
- Problem of drug and substance abuse among the youth.
- Poor state of Public schools in the ward, that need rehabilitation.eg. Perimeter fencing, carpeting of classrooms, sanitation facilities, etc.
- Need for adequate vocational training centers (polytechnics) for the youth.
- Unequipped training centers for the youth.
- Minimal youth empowerment and capacity building initiatives.
- Lack of income-generation schemes and job creation opportunities for the youth in the ward.
- Inadequate facilities for Special school-going children (mostly those with disabilities)
- Lack of transparency in awarding bursaries to the poor school going children.

3.2.5 TRADE, COMMERCE, COOPERATIVES AND TOURISM

- No trading spaces e.g. Open-air markets, Market stalls and Modern kiosks.
- Poorly-maintained existing markets.
- Lack of youth & women empowerment on entrepreneurship and trading activities.
- No sensitization programmes for small scale traders.

3.2.6 GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

- No ward administration offices in some wards.
- Lack of public sensitization and civic education, in regards to public participation forums.
- High frequency in fire outbreaks.
- No fire response centers within the wards.
- No training for disaster preparedness e.g., first aid skills, fire response.

3.2.7 URBAN PLANNING AND LANDS

- Rampant cases of land grabbing, especially, of public lands set aside for public utilities.
- Lack of title deed to land owners in the wards.
- No clear demarcation of lands in the wards, especially public lands, need for audit of lands.
- Encroachment of road reserves by private developers.
- Constructions leading to destruction of other utilities e.g. Water pipes. Drainage systems, etc.
- Need to conduct an audit of all public lands.

3.2.8 AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK DEVELOPMENT, FISHERIES AND FORESTRY

• Rising cases of stray animals in the wards.

- No provision of extension agricultural officers to aid in urban farming.
- Outbreak of diseases and discomfort in the wards due to insects e.g. Bedbugs, mosquitoes, etc.
- Unavailable agricultural facilities e.g. Fish ponds, greenhouses, poultry units to enhance urban agriculture.

3.2.9 PUBLIC SERVICE MANAGEMENT

- Minimal employment and involvement of the youth in the county e.g. in casual jobs.
- Understaffing-poorly-staffed to undertake duties e.g. Doctors, teachers, cleaners etc.

3.2.10 URBAN RENEWAL, HOUSING AND BUILDING SERVICES

• Poor state of County houses that require rehabilitation.

3.2.11 FINANCE AND ECONOMIC PLANNING

• Lack of mechanisms to oversee, monitor and evaluate ward projects.

3.2.12 ICT AND E-GOVERNMENT

- Poor management & coordination at ward level, to interact and integrate the community along with the county activities.
- Lack of ICT centers in the wards.

3.3 WARD-BASED FINDINGS

3.3.1 KAHAWA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Roads, Transport, Public works and Infrastructure.	Poor state of access roads. Insecurity No bridges Lighting	Gravelling of access roads. Rehabilitation (tarmacking) of the road linking Thika Road and the Northern bypass. Expansion of the access road between Ufariji and Dalmat. Installation of street lights along Kimuthi road. Construction of two bridges on River Kiu one linking Kimuthi estate and Kahawa estate and the other one linking Kimuthi estate and Kongo. Installation of high mast behind Familia Ufariji; next to Methodist Church; Seventh Day; behind St Elizabeth, Havilla children home.

	I		
		No ECD center	Construction of an ECD center at Kahawa primary school and another one at Mji wa Ufariji.
2.	Education, Youths, Sports, Culture and Social services	Unemployment	Involve the youths in casual jobs.
	Culture and Social services	No polytechnic for the youths	Construction of a polytechnic.
			Provision of civic education for capacity building of the youths.
		Lack of awareness	Increase frequency at which water will be available.
		Water shortage	Construction of designated collection points.
		Garbage waste management	Connection of sewer lines within the ward.
	Water, Sanitation,	Drainages being directed to the river.	Construction of an overall sewer system in the ward.
3.	Environment and Energy	No sewer line.	
4.	Health	Increased prevalence of tuberculosis.	Set aside a wing for TB patients.
		Poor health service delivery.	Expansion of Kahawa dispensary.
5.	Trade, Commerce, Industrialization, Tourism and Cooperatives	No market.	Construction of a stall market at Kamuthi grounds.
6.	Governor's office	No ward office.	Construction of a ward office.
7.	Urban planning and lands	Land grabbing.	Reclaim grabbed land.

3.3.2 KASARANI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Roads, Transport, Public works and Infrastructure	Incomplete bridge at Gituamba (stalled project).	Completion of construction the motor able bridge.
		Poor drainage systems at Kasarani- Mwiki road, Gituamba-Lucky	Rehabilitation of these drainage systems.
		summer road, Mwiki-Sports view road.	Completion of Gituamba road construction.
		Incomplete construction of Gituamba	Construction of a bus stop for vehicles.

		road	Rehabilitation of these roads.
		Kasarani-Mwiki road	Construction of an ECD Center at Chieko.
		Poor roads: Kamutini-Gituamba road, Redsoil road.	Equipping of the existing center.
2.	Education, Youths, Sports, Culture and Social Services	Lack of an ECD center	Establishment of special classes for people with special needs.
	Social Services	Vocational training center.	Increase allocation for non-communicable diseases.
			Construction of a hospital.
		Facilities for people with disabilities in schools.	Adequate supply of drugs.
3.	Health	Non-communicable diseases.	Equipping the health facilities with drugs and staffing the area health facility as well.
			Drilling a borehole in Kasarani Health center.
		Lack of a health facility	Landscaping along the River.
		No drugs in ward health facilities	Access to water in collaboration with
		Lack of skilled personnel and Inadequate health equipment	Nairobi water.
4.	Water, Sanitation, Environment, and Energy		Construction of an open air market.
	Environment, and Energy	Inadequate water in existing health center.	
		Kigwa River	
5.	Trade, Industrialization, Commerce, Tourism and cooperatives	Inadequate water.	
		Lack of a market.	

3.3.3 KIAMIKO WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	CHARACTERISTIC/ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Health	Lack of protective health garments.	Partner with community health workers and provide protective equipment as well.
		No health center.	Construction of a health center.
		No heatth center.	Provision of drugs in hospitals.
		Lack of drugs in hospitals.	Increase allocation for non-communicable diseases.
		Non communicable diseases.	Installation of water pipes Provision of cheap, adequate, clean water.

2.	Water, Environment, sanitation and energy	Water shortage	Construction of collection points. Construction of sewer lines in the ward.
		Garbage waste management.	Involve youths in Casual jobs.
		No sewer system.	Provision of a sports academy.
3.	Education, Youths, Sports, culture and social	Unemployment issue.	
	services	Untapped talent	

3.3.4 LINDI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	CHARECTERISTIC/ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECT
1.	Transport, Roads, Infrastructure and public works	Nonfunctional street lights. Uchumi Ndogo to Mshimoni feeder road. Poor drainage systems.	Repair and maintenance of the lights. Rehabilitation of the road. Expansion and rehabilitation of drainage systems in the ward. Construction of ECD schools
2.	Education, youths, sports, culture and social services	Few ECD centers in the ward. Lack of a social hall.	Construction of a social hall at Central area in the ward.
3.	Health	Lack of a health facility in the ward.	Construction of a health center/clinic in Lindi.
4.	Water, Sanitation, Environment, and energy	Destroyed water pipes.	Reconstruction of broken water pipes. Provision of adequate clean water. Establishment of sanitation facilities e.g. public toilets.
		Sanitation facilities.	Establishment of a dumpsite and garbage collection points
		Garbage waste management	Construction of a market.
5.	Trade, Industrialization, Tourism, Commerce and Cooperatives	No market in Lindi ward due to land grabbing.	

3.3.5 MAKINA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	CHARACTERISTIC/ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Roads, Transport, Public works and infrastructure	Poor state of roads.	Rehabilitation of the road starting from DCs office to Kichinjio road.
		Poor drainage systems	Rehabilitation of the drainage system at Toi market and Karanja Road.
			Rehabilitation of Makongeni Dala njani road.
		Insufficient street lighting.	Installation of 5 more street lights along the market.
2.	Water, Environment, Energy		Construction of garbage collection point.
		Garbage waste management.	Purchase of more garbage trucks in the ward.
			Rehabilitation of D.O.S health clinic.
			Provision of drugs in the health facility.
2	Health		Provision of maternity services.
3.		Poor health facility	D.O.S health clinic to be a 24hr operational health facility.
		No drugs in the ward health facility.	Construction of an ECD center at Olympic Primary School.
			Rehabilitation of Old Kibera primary school.
	Education, Youths,		Provision of cheap, affordable, clean water in the ward.
4.	Sports, Culture and Social Services	No ECD school	Construction of a storey building that will accommodate ward offices upstairs and a
		Poor state of Kibera primary school.	social hall on the ground floor.
		Inadequate water supply	
5.	Governors' office	No ward offices/social hall	

3.3.6 UMOJA 1 WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Poor condition of feeder roads.	Rehabilitation of feeder roads and re carpeting of the Moi drive.
		Insecurity due to poor lighting.	Street lighting in Umoja Inner core.
			Maintenance and rehabilitation of streetlights and flood lights.
		Lack of a designated bus terminus	Designating the bus terminus.
2.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And Natural Resources	Poor drainage system.	Reconstruction and rehabilitation of all drainages in Umoja 1.
	Resources	Poor sewer system.	Expansion and reconstruction of the sewer system in the ward.
		Lack of clean water.	Provision of adequate clean water in Umoja 1 health center, Umoja 1 primary school, Umoja 1 nursery school.
			Provide and reconstruct the pipes.
3.	Health	Insecurity due to lack of a perimeter wall.	Construction of a perimeter wall at Umoja 1 health center.
		Lack of an incinerator.	Purchase of an incinerator
		Lack of laboratory services.	Provision of laboratory services.
4.	Urban Planning, Lands And Physical Planning	Lack of title deeds.	Provision of title deeds From F to G to Q and Umoja one Innercore.
5.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture and Social Services	Lack of a library within the ward.	Provision of a resource center in Umoja 1 primary school.
	Services	Poor roofing and lack of a perimeter wall in Umoja 1 nursery.	Reroofing and Construction of a perimeter wall.
		Congestion in Umoja 1 nursery.	Expansion and upgrading of the nursery school.
6.	Urban Renewal And Housing	Unrepaired county houses.	Repair.
7.	Agriculture	Roaming animals.	Termination of stray animals.
		Fish pond.	Provision of Agriculture extensional services.
		Outbreak of mosquitoes.	Fumigation to be done frequently.

3.3.7 PUMWANI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Insecurity due to lack of lighting.	Installation of street lights along Mwinami road, link road and Ndungo road (Ngorobani phase 7)
2.	Water, Environment, Energy,	Poor waste management due to lack	Establishment of collection points.

	Forestry And Natural	of garbage collection points.	
	Resources		
		Outbreak of diseases due to lack of	Provision of adequate clean water.
		access to clean water	
3.	Health	Lack of adequate drugs and staffing (professionals)	Provision of drugs and staffing.
		(Upgrading of the Pumwani dispensary to a 24 hrs. hospital
		Lack of a physiotherapy ward.	Establishment of a physiotherapy wing.
		Lack of equipment in the laboratory.	Provision of laboratory facilities.
		Poor sanitation in the dispensary.	Rehabilitation of the sanitation system.
		Lack of an Incinerator.	Purchasing an incinerator.
4.	Urban Planning, Lands And Physical Planning	Selling of public lands by grabbers.	Repossession of public lands& terminating selling of public lands.
		Grabbing of all water points.	Mapping of public water points in the ward.

3.3.8 HARAMBEE WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Poor parking bay management at Ofafa Jericho.	Rehabilitation and earmarking of the public bay at Jericho social hall.
		Poor condition of feeder road.	Rehabilitation of feeder road from Mumias to phase 4 to phase 3.
		Lack of public lights.	Street lighting along phase 3; Hono cresent Nile road; Mbooni road and flood lights in phase 3 and phase 2;
		Poor road status.	Rehabilitation and carpeting of roads in the courts.
2.	Urban Planning, Lands And Physical Planning.	Land grabbing	Earmarking of the whole Harambee ward. Reclamation of Land grabbed at SOS technical and primary school in phase 3, St James church Mimindu court in phase 2
3.	Water, Energy And Environment	Narrow drainage system.	Expansion of drainage system in phase 3, Musingu close
4.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Poor condition of Lumumba social hall	Rehabilitation of Lumumba social hall. Rehabilitation of Bombea basketball court in PHASE 3 Bumbani, Rehabilitation and equipping of Jericho social hall to be a recreational center.

3.3.9 KAHAWA WEST

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION

1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Access roads in bad state are Kamai to Kiwanja road, Kware road, Karura road, Plaza road.	Rehabilitation of access roads.
		Lack of adequate street lights along station road to behind Mahiga primary connecting Karura.	Installation of additional street lights.
		Poor drainage along station road.	Repair and maintenance
		Narrow drainage along Collymore road. No walk ways along station road.	Rehabilitation of drainage system. Expansion of the drainage.
3.	Water Engage And	Poor sewer lines in the ward.	Construction of walk ways. Rehabilitation, repair and maintenance.
3.	Water, Energy And Environment	Poor garbage management.	Procurement of garbage truck
4.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of ECD center.	Construction of ECD center in Mahiga primary school.
	Services	No social hall in the ward.	Construction of a social Hall at the chief's camp (public space).
		Sports ground at Mahiga (bad state and no perimeter wall).	Rehabilitation and construction of a perimeter wall.
		Polytechnic(vocational training)-Not well equipped	Construction of a perimeter wall. Equipping with materials.
6.	Health	Kamiti health center	Rehabilitation of the health centre. Construction of a maternity wing. Establishment of a mobile clinic.
7.	Trade	Kahawa west market (Formal and informal)	Rehabilitation.
		Lack of a roof in the Open air market	Roofing.

3.3.10 HOSPITAL WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Insecurity due to poor lighting.	Provision of street lights from carwash to Kitathuri to Kosovo and Upendo road. Construction of proposed lighting.
		Lack of a linking bridge at Kitathuru	Construction of a bridge at Kitathuru.
		Lack of a drainage system.	Construction of drainage in Mathare village.
2.	Water, Energy And Environment	Inadequate water	Increase supply of clean water. Provision of water dispensers.
		Lack of garbage trucks. Blocked sewer system	Designation of garbage collection points and trucks. Maintenance of the existing sewer system
		Poor sanitation due to lack of public toilet.	Construction of a public toilet.
3.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of bursary funds.	Facilitation and provision of bursary funds to the poor.
		Lack of a training Centre for the youth.	Construction of a vocational Centre.

		Lack of a social hall.	Construction of a social hall for talent development.
		Lack of facilities and facilitation of special unit	Provision of a special unit for the vulnerable
4.	Health	Lack of adequate drugs at Upendo hospital. Lack of rapid response.	Provision of drug supply.
			Provision of human proficiency.
		Lack of a maternity ward. Lack of first aid response and C.H.V	Construction of a maternity ward.
		facilitation	Provision of an ambulance and facilitation of C.H.V services.
		Lack of skilled personnel and equipment's for NCDs in the health centers	Equipping the health Centre with skilled personnel and other facilities for NCDs
5.	Trade	Lack of a public market.	Construction of a public market at car park (Repossessing the land)
		No sensitization of the small scale	
6.	Urban Renewal And Housing	traders Lack of building plans.	Conducting sensitization programs Provision of proper building proficiency
0.	Croan Renewar And Trousing	Lack of building plans.	across all wards
		Lack of adequate knowledge on ward	
		administration and e-technology	Sensitization and enlightenment.
7.	Agriculture	Stray animals.	Terminate stray dogs and animals.
		No vaccination to roaming animals.	Provision of veterinary services
		Lack of sensitization.	Provision of extensional Agricultural services.
		No fish ponds.	Put up fish pond in the school

3.3.11 NGEI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Roads in bad state: Kibichoi road and other feeder roads.	Re carpeting of Kibichoi road and rehabilitation of other roads.
		No street lights along Kibichoi and Daniel Komboni roads	Installation of street lights
2.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And Natural Resources	Narrow sewer lines Poor garbage management.	Expansion and rehabilitation of sewer lines. Garbage collection points and trucks.
3.	Health	Lack of adequate drugs in the available health facility. Congestion in the available health facility No ambulance	Procurement of drugs. Expansion of the available health facility together with a maternity wing. Purchase of an ambulance
4.	Urban Planning, Lands And Physical Planning	Land grabbing	Repossession of grabbed land.
5.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture, and Social Services	No ECD center	Construction of ECD Centre at 46 slum
6.	Trade	No market	Repossession of grabbed land to construction of a market.

3.3.12 KARIOBANGI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Narrow drainage along Mutarakwa road Lack of adequate street lights along the road from 56 stage to day spring	Expansion Installation of additional street lights
3.	Health	Congestion at Kariobangi south dispensary.	Expansion of the dispensary. Put up an emergency door.
4.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture and Social Services	Incomplete Uhuru social hall	Completion of Uhuru social hall
5.	Governor's Office	Lack of sensitization	Civic education

3.3.13 EASTLEIGH NORTH WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Lack of street lights. Poor condition of feeder roads: Captain Mungai, Keringothi street to Juja road, Sergent Major Kamkombe to Muthikiri road, Kinyanjui to Muratina 1 st avenue, Kipanga Athmana to Wood street 1 st avenue	Installation of street lights. Rehabilitation of feeder roads.
2.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And Natural Resources	Frequent shortage of water. Lack of a public toilet Narrow Sewer and drainage systems	Drilling of boreholes at the New Eastleigh primary school and St Teresa Boys secondary school. Construction of a public toilet. Expansion of sewer system and drainage systems
3.	Health	No health center	Construction of a health center behind the police post.
4.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture and Social Services	Lack of ECD center within the ward. Lack of a library.	Construction of ECD Centre at New Eastleigh primary. Provision of the library at the Eastleigh social hall.

3.3.14 KOROGOCHO WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads And Public	Access roads in bad condition: St	Rehabilitation of access roads.
	Works	Johns to	
		Lucky summer, Korogocho market	
		road	
		Insecurity due to poor street lights	
			Maintenance of existing street lights.
2.	Health	Lack of adequate drugs in Korogocho	Provision of drugs
		health Centre.	

3.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social	No vocational training	Provision for vocational training.
	Services	Inadequate ECD centers &	Construction of ECD centers in all villages.
		inadequate personnel	Employment of additional personnel.
		Poor condition of Korogocho stadium.	Renovation of the stadium.
4.	Water, Environment, Energy And Natural Resources	Poor water distribution.	Increase water supply.
		Poor waste management due to high concentration of garbage in the ward	Establish garbage collection points.
5.	Trade	Congested trading space.	Construction of modern kiosks at Komboni area.
6.	Governor's Office	Frequent fire incidences	Provision of a fire engine in the ward.
7.	Public Service Management	High levels of unemployment among the youth.	Engaging the youth in youth employment.

3.3.15 UTALII WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads And Public Works	Poor condition of access roads in area 4	Rehabilitation of access roads.
		Lack of a foot bridge.	Construction of a foot bridge.
		No streetlights.	Installation of street lights at the boundary between KCA & area 4 outside Helda Marie primary school.
2.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Congestion at the ECD Centre due to lack of adequate classes.	Construction of additional classes.
		Lack of a polytechnic.	Construction of a polytechnic at drive in area.
		Lack of a ramp for persons living with disability	Construction of a ramp for persons living with disability.
3.	Water, Environment, Energy And Natural Resources	Frequent water shortage.	Increase water supply.
	Tina (tatara Resources	No public toilets	Construction of a public toilet at Ant Hill.
		Inadequate tree cover.	Planting trees along Mathare North road.
4.	Trade, Co-Operatives, Industrialization And Tourism	Lack of a market in the ward.	Construction of a market
5.	Public Service Management	High levels of unemployment among the youth.	Involving the youth in casual jobs.

3.3.16 VIWANDANI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads And Public	Poor condition of roads in the ward.	Rehabilitation of Sinai road.
	Works		
2.	Health	Lack of adequate drugs and other	Provision of drugs and equipment.
		equipment at Maleba dispensary	
3.	Water, Environment, Energy	Lack of access to clean water.	Provision of water dispenser and tanks in
	And Natural Resources		Sinai.
		Poor sewer system.	Rehabilitation of the sewer system.
4.	Trade	Lack of a market	Construction of a market.
5.	Public Service Management	Non- involvement in casual jobs	Involve the youth in casual jobs
6.	Agriculture	Outbreak of pests and water borne	Fumigation to be done frequently.
		diseases.	

3.3.17 KITISURU WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Roads, Public works, Transport.	Incomplete Kapenguria Road	Completion of the road and equipping with road signage.
		Poorly-maintained Loresho Crescent Road.	Rehabilitation of the road.
		Narrow Kirima –Kimwe access road	Repair and expansion of the road.
2.	Education, Youth affairs, Social services.	Loresho primary- No fencing.	Perimeter wall around the school
3.	Trade, Cooperatives, Tourism.	No markets in the ward.	Establishment of markets and modern kiosks.
4.	Health	Lower Kabete health Centre- poorly equipped.	Upgrade of health facilities Construction of sanitation facilities.
			Construction of laboratories.

3.3.18 MAKONGENI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Road,	Poor drainage system in the ward	Repair and maintenance of existing drainage
	Transport And Infrastructure		systems
		Inadequate street lighting in the ward	
			Installation of streetlights in the roundabout
			area and stadium road.
		Poor road network in the ward.	D C CM
			Re carpeting of Mwea road.
			Completion of Stadium road and Njiwa road.
			Toad.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Poor state of ECD Centres in the ward	Rehabilitation and equipping of ECD centres at Mbotela and Kaloleni.
		Inaccessibility of Vocational training	Renovation of the vocational training Centre
		centres	in the ward.
			Budgetary allocation to ensure the charges
		Look of a proper social hall in the	for the trainings are subsidized.
		Lack of a proper social hall in the	Re-possession of the grabbed land meant for

		ward	social hall facilities.
			Upgrading and equipping the social hall.
3.	Health Services	Inadequate drugs in the health facilities.	Equipping Mbotela health clinic, Makongeni health Centre and Kaloleni health Centre with enough drugs and other medical equipment.
		Inadequate water supply at Kaloleni health center	Construction of a water tower at Kaloleni health Centre.
4.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Inadequate water supply in the ward.	Increase accessibility to water in the ward.

3.3.19 KAREN WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of social integrated groups	Provision of social interactive groups for security and social integration Sensitization of the community.
			Construction and equipping of a social hall.
		Lack of a resource Centre in the ward	Construction of additional ECD centres in the ward.
		Lack of an ECD Centre in the ward	
2.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Lack of a public toilet in the ward	Construction of a public toilet at Hardy shopping Centre.
		Lack of garbage collection points and trucks	Designation of garbage collection points and assignment of a garbage collection trucks.
		Inadequate water supply	Rehabilitation of the water point at Karen shopping Centre.
			Provision of a main storage tank or reservoir and installation of water control system.
3.	Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries, Forestry And Natural Resources	Lack of an Agriculture Centre	Creation of an agriculture Centre at St. Mary's through provision of a Fish pond and greenhouses.

3.3.20 SOUTH C WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Roads, Transport, Public Works And Infrastructure	Poor state of roads in the ward.	Expansion and re-carpeting of Akiba estate road, Mufulu avenue, Mugoya shopping centre road, Five star estate road and Olive tree road.
		Inadequate street lights	Installation of floodlights at Mufulu avenue and streetlights along Thogoto road and Akiba estate.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And	Lack of a social hall in the ward.	Construction of a social hall next to Jina clinic

	Social Services		
3.	Health Services	Poor state of public health facilities	Rehabilitation, upgrading and equipping the health facility.
4.	Governor's Office	Lack of ward offices	Construction of ward offices to accommodate the county government officers in the ward.
5.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Inadequate water supply within the ward. Lack of garbage collection points. Poor drainage systems in the ward.	Availing alternative water sources. Designate clear and Accessible garbage collection points. Rehabilitation of drainage system along Oleshapura & Popo road, Parkview estate, Rongoni estate and Real estate.

3.3.21 MWIKI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Roads, Transport, Public Works And Infrastructure	Insecurity due to lack of streetlights	Street lighting at Railway terminus, Karura-Mwiki road, depression at Mwitirithia area (phase ii), Mwiki along Mysa road, Red soil next to booster. Installation of high mast public lights at Manguo Area. Maintenance of already installed public lights.
		Accidents along the road.	Completion of Githurai- Mwiki bridge.
		Poor drainage system in the ward.	Construction of proper drainage system at Mwiki scheme and at St. Dominic.
		Lack of a proper bus terminus.	Construction of a bus terminus at the public land near the market ground.
2.	Health Services	Non-operational heath facility	Equipping, staffing and operationalizing Mwiki health centre.
			Provision of drugs in the facility.
3.	Trade, Commerce, Industrialization And Tourism.	Lack of a market space.	Construction of a modern market at block 141/Karura.

3.3.22 WOODLEY WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads, Transport And Infrastructure.	Inadequate lighting.	Installation of flood lights at Toi market and at Moi Girls.
			Maintenance of the installed public lights at Dagoretti Corner.
			Rehabilitation of Adams Arcade-Joseph Kang'ethe road, as well as its drainage and

		Poor roads in the ward.	pedestrian walk way.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of social resource centres in the ward	Rehabilitation of Joseph Kang'ethe hall and NCC hall at the City Askaris' residence in Dagoretti Corner Equipping Woodley grounds on Kinoo road with recreational facilities.
		Increased brothels in the name of massage SPAs as well as alcohol and substance abuse in the ward	Enforcement of County by laws that regulate operations of such ventures. Enforcement of NEMA and NACADA regulations with regards to noise pollution and drug & substance abuse.
3.	Health Services	Inadequate equipment in the health facilities	Provision of more equipment to Ngong road dispensary and Woodley clinic. Provision of drugs and adequate staffing of the health facilities.
			Procurement of an ambulance for the facilities in the ward.
4.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Inadequate water supply within the water in the ward.	Provision of clean, safe and continuous flowing tapped water for domestic use within the ward.
		Poor garbage handling	Designation of garbage collection points at Dagoretti corner, outside Kenyatta market and outside Toyi market.
			Garbage extraction from the Toyi market dumpsite.
5.	Trade, Commerce, Industrialization And Tourism	Encroachment of road reserves by traders	Rehabilitation of Toyi market into a modern market, installing enough modern kiosks for the traders.

3.3.23 MATHARE NORTH WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads, Transport And Infrastructure	Insecurity due to darkness	Maintenance of installed streetlights in the ward.
			Installation of streetlights in Area I.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Insecurity and distractions in the school	Completion of the perimeter wall around the school.
3.	Health Services	Lack of drugs in the public health facility	Provision of drugs to the health facility. Allocate funds for medication of NCDs in the budget.
4.	Governor's Office	Ignorance amongst the public	Sensitization and education of the public. More public participation forums to engage the public on projects.

3.3.24 NAIROBI WEST WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads, Transport And Infrastructure	Poor state of roads in the ward.	Re-carpeting and rehabilitation of Naimey road, Ole Sangale road, Muthaiti road, all roads within Nairobi West shopping centre and all roads within Miller estate.
			Installation of streetlights in Madaraka estate, Swara crescent and Akila I estate.
		Inadequate street lighting	Have designated Bodaboda stages with bodaboda shades.
		Lack of bodaboda stages Poor drainage system in the ward	Expansion of the drainage system at Madaraka primary, MF1 estate as well other parts of the ward to increase its holding capacity.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Un-Equipped ECD block at Madaraka primary school.	Staffing, installation of electricity, provision of learning materials and furniture to the newly constructed ECD block at Madaraka Primary school.
			Construction of an ablution block for ECD children Construction of pavement from the main gate to the ECD classes.
		Lack of recreational facilities in the ward.	Construction of a social hall within the ward, preferably in Madaraka.
3.	Health Services	Poor state of the health facility in the ward.	Rehabilitation of the public health facility in South C.
4.	Governor's Office	Lack of ward offices	Construction of ward offices for the county government officer in the ward.
5.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Water shortage in the ward	Drilling of boreholes in Madaraka primary, Madaraka, Akilla 1, Swara crescent and Miller estates.
6.	Trade, Commerce, Industrialization And Tourism	Lack of proper market space in the ward.	Construction of a modern market in Nairobi west shopping centre.

3.3.25 AIRBASE WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport and public works	Street lighting in the ward.	Maintenance of existing ones Installation of lights at Penuel-Kibereli lane,
		N. DOD G	high mast in 5 th and 6 th , 3 rd Avenue.
2.	Education, Youth Affairs, Social services.	No ECD Center	Construction and equipping of an3. ECD centre at Airport primary school
3.	Water, Environment and Sanitation.	Sewer problem.	Shifting of main Sewer line to along perimeter wall of East Leigh community

			center/Airport primary.
			Expansion of Sewer line from Maina Wanjigi Secondary, Airport primary towards 3 rd Avenue.
4.	Health	Water problem in health facility (MCH)	Drilling boreholes & supply of clean piped water.
		Lack of a macerator in MCH health facility.	Provision of a macerator in east Leigh health clinic (maternity wing)
		Insecurity in the clinic.	Perimeter wall completion, and gate.
		Leaking roofs. Inadequate drug supplies in the ward.	Re-roofing of east leigh health center.
		Lack of drugs at the health center.	Provision of adequate supply of drugs in east Leigh health facility.
		Dance failure in the health facility	Provision of laboratory equipment and reagents.
		Power failure in the health facility.	Procurement of a Backup generator in the health facility.

3.3.26 CALIFORNIA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Governor`s Office	Frequent fire outbreaks especially in Vijiji.	Equipping of fire engines existent. Establishment of fire hydrant points for
			water supply.
2.	Water, Environment and Sanitation.	Sewer blockages.	Expansion of sewer lines.
		Equipping of Desert grounds (is an open field for functions)	Chain-Link fencing.
3.	Education, Youth affairs, Social services.	No ECD centers.	Construction of an ECD centers.
4.	Urban planning and lands.	No clear demarcation of lands especially New Pumwani primary and market.	Demarcation of lands.
5.	Health	No health center in California estate.	Construction of a clinic/dispensary(available land)
		Biafra Clinic	Expansion and equipping.
6.	Trade, Cooperatives, Tourism.	No modern kiosks/stalls	Construction of additional stalls.
7.	Urban renewal and housing.	Old County houses.	Rehabilitation of the houses.
8.	Transport, roads and Public works.	Inadequate lighting especially in the vijiji, near Nomads hotel, Kinyago area, California block B, B9& 10 Terraces.	Provision of adequate lighting.

Poor state of Waudo road and other access roads in the ward.	Tarmacking of roads.
Poor drainage systems	Rehabilitation of the drainage systems.

3.3.27 EASTLEIGH SOUTH WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, cooperatives, Tourism	No market	Construction of an open air market e.g. at Kosovo grounds.
2.	Governor`s office	No ward offices.	Construction of a ward office.
3.	Agriculture	Lack of promotion of urban farming.	Establishment of greenhouses at Zawadi primary. Sensitization and training.
4.	Education, youth affairs, Social services.	No ECD center.	Construction of an ECD center in Zawadi primary.
		Lack of a youth technical institution.	Staffing with ECD teachers.
		No social hall.	Construction of a training center for youth.
		Bursary allocations.	Construction of a social hall/recreational center.
			Adequate allocation and transparency in awarding.
5.	Roads, Transport, public works	Poor access roads e. g.17, 18 Mwende road, Mwende street Olesimon road.	Rehabilitation of access roads.
		No bodaboda shades.	Construct of shades.
		Poor condition of footbridge at Kiambio- City Corton, Nairobi River.	Rehabilitation of the bridge.
6.	Water, Environment, Sanitation.	Inadequate sanitation facilities in Kiambio.	Construction of public toilets in the ward.
		Poor waste management.	Provision of waste bins in several parts of the ward.

3.3.28 MARINGO/HAMZA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Health	Non communicable diseases exclusion in	Adequate allocation to NCDs.
		allocation.	Public awareness on NCDs.
		Poorly-equipped health centers.	Upgrade one clinic to a hospital
			Equipment-Drugs, staff, ambulance, medical equipment.
2.	Transport, Public works,	Poorly-maintained access roads esp. Mbale road.	Tarmacking of Mbale road.
	Roads.		
3.	Education, Youth affairs,	Street families increased at Bahati hall.	Rehabilitation center in the

	Social services.	Poorly- maintained sports ground.	ward.
		1 ooriy- mantamed sports ground.	
		Lack of an operating social hall.	Rehabilitation of the ground.
		Inadequate classes in Bahati nursery.	Rehabilitation of Tom-Mboya hall.
		Lack of facilities for people with disabilities.	nan.
		Drug & substance abuse problem.	Additional classrooms to be constructed.
			Empowerment and allocation.
			Rehabilitation center For the affected.
4.	Water, Environment,	No garbage collection points.	Establishment of collection
	sanitation.	Water shortages.	points and dumpsites.
			Provision of adequate water.
5.	Urban renewal and housing.	Poorly maintained county houses.	Maintenance of the houses.
6.	Governor's office.	No fire response center.	Establish center.
			Train youth on fire response.

3.3.29 HURUMA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Education, Youth affairs, Social services	Salama ECD center-Unequipped	Upgrading of facility with special equipment for special children.
		Huruma primary fencing.	Additional classrooms
			Perimeter wall.
		Lack of youth employment and empowerment programs.	
			Training programs.
2.	Water, Environment and Sanitation.	Water problem	Provision of adequate water.
			Establishment of means and
		Garbage collection problem.	pouts of garbage collection.
3.	Transport, Public works	Abandoned St. Martin's church road.	Completion of the road.
		Malfunctioning streetlights.	
		Poor drainage in the ward.	Repair and maintenance of lights.
			Expansion and rehabilitation.
4.	Public Service Management.	Inadequate ECD teachers.	Employment of more ECD teachers.
5.	Agriculture, Livestock	Inadequate promotion of urban farming in the	Establishment of a
	development.	ward.	demonstration site for agricultural activities.
6.	Health	Unequipped Huruma Lions health Centre.	Upgrading and equipping of the facility
			Drug supply.
		NCDs exclusion in planning.	

			Establishment of a Maternity
			wing
			Adequate allocation in budget.
7.	Urban planning and lands	Construction destroying other utilities e.g. water	Conduct strict assessment and
		pipes.	monitoring of constructions.

3.3.30 LAINI SABA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Education, Social services and Youth affairs.	No social hall.	Construction of a social hall at AMREF grounds.
		Inadequate empowerment for the people with disability, Youth and young mothers. No ECD centers.	Capacity building and provision of adequate funds for the people with disability, Women and Youth empowerment.
		Poorly-maintained sports ground.	Construction of an independent ECD School
			Rehabilitation of sports ground.
2.	Trade, cooperatives, tourism.	Lack of market / trading space in the ward.	Construction of modern kiosks.
3.	Health	Lack of a public hospital.	Construction of a health center in Laini Saba ward.
		Lack of facilitation for NCDs.	Provision of NCD drugs in health centers and community, at subsidized prices.
		Poor health facility.(existent)	Upgrade and rehabilitation of the health facility with laboratories, x-ray machines, medicine,etc
4.	Water, Environment and Sanitation.	Water problem.	Drilling of boreholes
			Provision of wider water pipes.
		Poor waste management.	Come up with a waste management programme.
5.	Transport, Roads and public works	Blocked drainage systems at Mashimoni.	Rehabilitation of drainage system.
6.	Governor`s office	Lack of access to ground- level civic education	Adequate facilitation of public education to community.
7.	Urban planning.	Lack of land mapping for public facilities.	Demarcation of public lands.

3.3.31 MLANGO KUBWA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Health	Community Health	Provision of administrative
		workers.	facilitation, safety kits, equipment, etc.
		Non communicable Diseases.	Equipping with facilities for the NCD patients.
		Infectious diseases E.g. Tuberculosis and	Sensitization on preventive
		HIV/AIDS.	Measures for TB, against irresponsible behavior for HIV.
		Existing health center.	Upgrading of existing health center to 24hr health services.
			Adequate skilled professionals in health center.
		Inadequate Maternal Care.	Facilitation of traditional birth attendants, and review of their services esp. in Slums.
			Provision of Maternity ward in the health centre (Mathari hospital)
		No ambulance services.	Procurement of ambulances in the ward.
2.	Roads, Transport & public works	Drainage problem.	Rehabilitation of drainage system in ward.
3.	Water, Environment and Sanitation	Damaged sewer lines	Expansion of sewer lines.
		Water problem at Kiboro primary.	Rehabilitation of existing borehole.
		Water problem in the ward.	Provision of water dispensers (ATMs).
			Provision of water tanks for fresh water.
			Adequate water provision in toilets.
		No public toilets.	Construction of public toilets in the ward.
		Broken sewer lines	Repair & maintenance of sewer lines existent.
4.	Education, Youth affairs, Sanitation.	No vocational training.	Construction of a vocational training center.
		Inadequate facilities for special children.	Provision of special unit in Kiboro primary.
		Street families & children.	Provision of Rehabilitation center and children's center in the ward.

		Drug abuse rampant among youth.	Provision of peer education and sensitization on drug abuse.
		No social hall.	Construction of social hall and resource center.
		Dilapidated Kitchen at Kiboro primary.	Construction of a new kitchen block.
5.	Trade, Cooperatives, Tourism	No market in the ward.	Repossession of public land to Construct the market.

3.3.32 MOWLEM WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport and Public works	Poor state of roads.	Gravelling of Feros-Tononka road towards Shell. Completion of Baraka-Ring road.
		Rampant accidents.	Erection of bumps and marking of pedestrian
			Crossing and paths.
		Street lighting	Installation of more lights in the ward especially roads.
			Repair and maintenance of existing lights.
			Installation of security lights around super loaf primary.
2.	Education, Youth affairs, Social services.	Lack of a social hall.	Construction of a social hall, with a playground for youth.
		No support staff at Super loaf primary.	Employment of support staff.
3.	Health	Sicknesses due to emission by companies.	Subsidized treatment at Mama Lucy for affected.
		Inadequate Community Health Volunteers	Employment & involvement of the volunteers.
4.	Governor`s office	Negligence of the public about public participation	Civic education to public.
		and relative forums.	Consultative forums before, during and after project implementation.
5.	Urban planning	Encroachment of road reserves and blockages by private developers.	Proper planning on the area.
6.	Water, Environment, Sanitation.	Poorly maintained Sewers system.	Rehabilitation and expansion of sewer systems.
		Careless disposal of sewers by companies specifically Elite & Cementers.	Compel companies to properly structure their sewer lines.
		Pollution by companies.	Compel to adhere with NEMA

	No waste disposal points.	requirements.
	No waste disposar points.	Establish waste collection points.
		Provision of garbage trucks.

3.3.33 RIRUTA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Transport, Roads, Public works & Infrastructure	Poor state of Kimondo road.	Rehabilitation and maintenance of Kimondo Road.
		Lack of Road safety on Kabiria Road.	Put up road signs.
		No drainage/sewer systems specifically Mutindwa, riruta- Lenana Road, Kinyanjui-Kimondo Road, Kahuho Road. Kinyanjui Road.	Construction of Bumps Construction of drainage system in the areas. Expansion and Maintenance of
		Poor Access roads in Riruta.	Kinyanjui Road Repairs and maintenance of access roads
2.	Water, Environment, Energy & Natural resources.	Water problem- Inadequacy and inaccessibility.	Provision of access to water points.
		Lack of Garbage collection points.	Establishment of garbage collection points in the ward.
		Makaburini garbage holding ground.	Establishment of a recycling plant.
		Poor sanitation facilities e.g. Public toilets.	Provision of sanitation facilities in the ward.
3.	Health	No health center in Riruta Satellite.	Construction of a health center in Riruta Satellite.
		Inadequate supply of drugs in existing health centre.	Provision of adequate supply of drugs at health centre.
4.	Trade, Cooperatives and Tourism.	No market stalls.	Establishment of market stalls in the ward.
5.	Public Service Management	Poorly-staffed County officers to undertake duties e.g. cleanups	Staff adequate officers to partake duties.
6.	Urban Planning and housing.	Destruction of other public facilities by private developers constructing buildings on sewer, etc.	Action be taken on Private developers destroying other utilities.
7.	Education, Youth affairs, Sports& Culture, Social Services.	Poor state of Nyandarua sports ground.	Rehabilitation of the sports ground.

3.3.34 UPPER SAVANNAH WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water, Environment, Energy, Natural resource.	Inadequate public	Construction of additional public
		toilets in the ward.	toilets at Kisumu Ndogo, phase 8.
		Inadequate water in sanitation utilities.	Provision of water in public toilets at Kamolo and Vumilia.
2.	Urban planning, housing and lands	Public land grabbed.	Reclamation of grabbed land in Savanna ward.
3.	Roads, Transport, public works.	Poorly maintained drainage.	Expansion of drainage system.
		Inadequate street lights.	Installment of additional lighting at Old Donholm.
			Repair and Maintenance of existing ones.

3.3.35 KWA REUBEN WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECT/INTERVENTIONS
1.	ICT and E governance	Poor management	Sensitize and educate programs on ward based
		Lack of coordination	Positive approach in the community based level, interaction and cohesive integration
2.	Education	Maendeleo primary	To be upgraded to county primary school
		No public primary schools	Provision of primary school to be considered
		No recreational institute	Construction of social halls
3.	Health	Cancer	Programs for sensitization of the youths about communicable diseases
			Provision of enough drugs
		No drugs	
		No ambulance	Purchase an ambulance for Malaba health centre
4.	Public Works Transport And Infrastructure	No public lighting	Rehabilitation of lights
		No proper communication	Construction of a bridge which was carried away by floods
		No drainage pattern	Upgrade all the drainage disposal system
		Access and feeder roads	Upgrade railway to Simba Katoto
5.	Agriculture	No green houses	Construction of green houses at Katoto primary school and also Maendeleo primary school
		Loitering animals	Termination of all stray animals and vaccination of the same

3.3.36 MUGUMO-INI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Roads, Transport, Infrastructure and Public works	Sasumua bumps	Construction of bumps at Sasumua area
		Closed walkways	Rehabilitation of walkway at Kitengela road
	Water, Sanitation, Environment		Provide clean Pipe water to the community
2.	and energy	Lack of adequate water	Improvement of the drainage systems at Kitengela road
		Poor drainage systems	Rehabilitate the sewer systems in the
		Burst sewer systems	ward
	Health	No drugs in hospitals,	Provision of drugs and an ambulance
3.		ambulance in the ward	
		Lack of NBU in maternity wing	Provision of NBU under maternity wing
4.	Trade, commerce, industrialization and tourism	Mugumoini market	Upgrading of Mugumoini market

3.3.37 PANGANI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED PROJECTS
1.	Roads, Transport, public works and infrastructure	Chai Road	Upgrade tarmacking
		Exit from Pangani	Lighting on the road
		Inner roads in Old Racecourse estate	Repairs
		Old Racecourse shopping center	Tarmacking
		Incomplete construction of the road extending from old Racecourse estate entrance to the	Rehabilitation of the shopping center
		end of the main road	Pavement to be done
		The end of the main road streetlights at estate entrance	
		Drainage systems	Maintenance, repair and installation of the street lights.
		Barriers for the parking	Rehabilitation of drainage at Racecourse
		Baridi lane; Baridi road	Make it a public facility.
		Migweni Road	Rehabilitation.
			Reconsider the road(contractor

		Northview Road, Mbono Road	abandoned due to delayed payments)
		Street children	Construction of bumps
		No polytechnics in Pangani	
		Income generation scheme for youth	Allocate funds for them for housing care
2.	Education, youths, sports, culture and social services	Hospital facilities	Construct polytechnic for youths.
	social services	Non-Communicable diseases	Involve them in ward projects.
		Old Racecourse shopping center	Upgrade the existing hospital facilities.
		Garbage collection	Allocate funds for non-communicable diseases
3.	Health		Plant trees and beautify the area.
		Open spaces in Pangani	Than trees and seading the area.
4.	Environment, water, energy and	Inadequate water	Installation of garbage loaders(use youths to do the collection)
7.	sanitation	Insecurity (Old Racecourse estate) caused by illegal construction	Allocate for soil, plants, Flowers to cover up open spaces.
		within the estates	Provide adequate clean water.
5.	Governor's office		Repossess back the land to destroy these constructions.

3.3.38 UMOJA 2 WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public works, Roads and Transport	Poor condition of access roads.	Rehabilitation of Manyanja Road. Construction of sidewalks for the pedestrian. Rehabilitation of Kibaru-Busara road Repair and maintenance of existing drainage
2.	Education, Youth, Sports, Culture and Social services	Blocked drainage systems Lack of a social hall	Construction of a social hall. Construction of recreational facilities.
		Lack of a children's office	Construction of office.
		Lack of rescue Centre	Construction of rescue Centre

3.	Water, Energy, Environment, Forest and	Garbage	Construction of garbage collection points.
	Natural Resources		D 25 2 1 2 2 1 1
		Environment	Beautification e.g. planting trees especially on open spaces
		Environment	Sensitization of public on environmental
			conservation.
4.	Trade, co-operatives, Industrialization and Tourism	Promotion of trade and tourism.	Exhibition and marketing activities.

3.3.39 DANDORA 1 WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Health	No Drugs	Provision Of Drugs.
		Lack Of Laboratory Services	Provision Of Laboratory Services.
		Poor Environment Management Of The Dump Site And Garbage Disposal	Relocate And Implement Management Policy Of Garbage Disposal System.
2.	Environment	Garbage Collection	Enhance Transport To Collect Garbage.
		Dumpsite A Menace	Renovation Of Dumpsite.
		Public Toilets Not Well	Youth Empowerment To Monitor
		Maintained	Management Of Public Toilets.
3.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Feeder Roads	Main Road To Korogocho To Be Tarmacked.
		Public Lighting	Rehabilitate The Broken Down Lightings.
4.	TRADE, COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY	Poor State Of The Market.	Rehabilitation Of The Market.

3.3.40 DANDORA 3 WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Insecurity	Installation of flood flights the field
			behind Posta and lighting of streets.
			Installation of high masks at strategic
			terminals e.g. 41,45,railways,blockg
			Expansion of drainage around Dandora
			playing ground.
			Rehabilitation of the drainage around
			independent Obondo port.
		Poor drainage	
2.	Governor's Office	Lack of civic education.	Public or civil society to be educated and
			sensitized on the government functions
			available for them.
3.	Education Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture	Most youths are jobless	Equipping social halls with recreational

	And Social Services	and lack necessary	facilities to help develop diverse talents.
		facilities to develop their	Setting aside funds for inter-halls
		talents.	competitions
			Creating awareness amongst the youths
			for self-empowerment
			Creation of a resource center to help the
			groups empower themselves and access
			opportunities
			Employ more youths to replace the old in
			the county government.
4.	Water, Energy And Environment	Poor garbage collection	Provision of garbage trucks for the ward.
			Days for garbage collection to be
			specified to avoid reckless dumping.
5.	Agriculture	Promotion of urban	Sensitization of the community on
		agriculture.	modern agriculture.
			Setting aside finances for facilitation of
			groups established for urban agriculture.
6.	Health	Poor state of health	Provision of medicine to health centres
		facilities	
			Improve security in the facility
			Pre-natal and post-natal training
			Procurement of ambulances

3.3.41 DANDORA 4 WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, Commerce, Cooperative And Tourism	Market surrounded by dumping sites	Dumping Sites To Be Removed .
			Construction Of Perimeter Wall Round The Market
			The Market
		Poor drainage in the market	Drainage system to be constructed
2.	Transport, Roads, Public Works	No public lights	Put up street lights.
	And Infrastructure	At Mzalendo area.	
		Construction of provide road, Gitaari marigu road, and also public lighting.	Gitaari road was blocked.
		Dandora area 4 access road	Rehabilitation of the access road
		No sewer lines.	Construction.
3.	Education, Youth Affairs And	No perimeter wall round	Construction of perimeter wall to avoid
	Social Services	the social hall	destruction.

4.	Environment, Energy, Water	Water projects in Gitaari	Come up with water projects.
		marigu.	

3.3.42 EMBAKASI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Urban Renewal And Housing	Poor management of public toilets at the rental houses	Rehabilitation of public houses at the county rental houses.
2.	Agriculture	Farming using sewer water.	Termination of farming using sewer water.
		Poor feeder roads	Rehabilitation and upgrading feeder roads.
3.	Trade, Cooperative, Tourism And Industrialization	No public market	Purchase of public space for construction of market.
		Lack of youth and Women Empowerment on business	Training on entrepreneurship.
4.	Health	Drug abuse among the youth.	Sensitization of the youth against drug abuse.
		Lack of operational health facilities 24hr service	Provision of social workers facilitation and response base.
		Lack of facilities in health	Provision of first aid kits
		centres	Equipping of maternity ward.
5.	Water, Energy And Environment	No sewer line in Tassia.	Construction of sewer lines.
		No adequate water	Connection of water by Nairobi water and sewerage company.
		Garbage	Regular collection of garbage.
		No trees	Tree planting for good health
		Public toilets	Renovation of toilets.
6.	Education	Congestion in the only one primary school in Embakasi ward	Construction of a new primary school at Tassia.
		Neglect of special children.	Budget to be set for special needs.
7.	TRANSPORT, ROADS AND PUBLIC SERVICE	No drainage	Rehabilitation of drainage at Tassia 1 2 3.
		Incomplete feeder Roads.	Complete road from Embakasi.
		No speed bumps	Erect speed bumps

3.3.43 KARIOKOR WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Governor's Office	lack of preparedness for disaster	Training on first aid skill provision of fire engine.
2	Health	Equipping of existing health center.	Upgrading Ziwani clinic to health centre Provision of ambulance in the clinic.
			Provision of full time doctors.
			Provision of pesticides control services and mosquitoes.
			Bedbug's prevention.
3.	Agriculture	Lack of agricultural extension services.	Provision for agricultural extension officers.
4.	Water, Energy And Environment	Water problem.	Cutting and pruning of trees and water provision.
			Designate waste collection points dig holes with covers and let people dispose at the hole which should be collected when filled.
			Rehabilitation of water systems
5.	Transport, Roads And Public Works	Poor drainage systems.	Rehabilitation of Jairo awino road.
			Rehabilitation of Ngore streets.
			Closing of open manholes and expansion of Kombo muhini road.
			Tarmacking of Kariokor estate and rehabilitation of drainage system.
6.	Education, Youth Affairs And Social Services	Equipping of sports grounds.	Provision of sports equipment.
		No social hall.	Construction of a multi-storey social hall and equipment
		Poor state of playing ground	Rehabilitation of basketball pitch
7.	Trade	Inadequate market facilities	Upgrading of Kariokor market into a modern market.
			Construction of modern kiosks along racecourse and kinyanjui road
		Incomplete perimeter wall in kariokor market	Rehabilitation and completion of perimeter wall in Kariokor.

3.3.44 KAYOLE NORTH WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport, Roads And Public Works	No linking roads	Watitu road to kayole north to Mihango bridge
			open the road to link the two wards
			Collection and clearing of drain along the bridge and linking road
		No speed bumps	Provision of speed bumps along off spine road kayole 1
2.	Health	Lack of drugs	Provision and supplying drugs in public hospitals
		No laboratory services	Provision of laboratory services
		Lack of professional social workers and staff	Professional of facilitators of human resource management and social workers
		No maternity services	Provision of maternity services and operationalization of maternity staff
		Non –communicable diseases	Provision of facilitating the health clinics with social workers and machines for the non-communicable diseases.
3.	PUBLIUC WORKS,ROADS AND TRANSPORT	Poor feeder roads	Rehabilitation of all feeder roads in kayole.
		No street lights	Maintenance and operation of the existing lighting facilities
			Additional of flood lights at nyaura at riverside posta kayole and bidi from cheers to bidii from mihango stage club east.
		Lack of drainage to disseminate storm water	Provision of storm water drain
		No names of feeder roads Blocked drainage	Naming of roads for security purposes
4.	Environment	Poor condition of public toilet.	Rehabilitation of public toilets at spine road markets.
		Garbage not Collected	Garbage collection and management.
		Lack of proper sewerage system	Bidii sewerage system blocked River degeneration
		Poor garbage	Provision of pipe rehabilitation sewers

		dissemination and sewer disposal to the river	maintenance marimba-kayole to spring valley.
		Poor pipe range system and capacity overflow	Provision of adequate fresh water
		Lack of supply of fresh water from county	
5.	Agriculture	Unsheltered and unvaccinated animals.	Termination stray animals and stray dogs.
		Lack of agricultural officers	Provision of agricultural extension services
6.	Education	No social hall	Construction of social halls.
7.	Governor's Office	ICT and E governance	Provision of public information and sensitization on project management.
8.	Trade	Shanty and illegal structures underway leaf as a market	Rehabilitation of Bidii market proposed for open air market.

3.3.45 KAYOLE SOUTH WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Poor drainage system	Rehabilitation of drainage system in the area
			Construction of perimeter wall round mwangaza
		Insecurity in the area	school
			installation of street lights at riverside and D5
			Carpeting of riverside road.
		Poor state of roads	
2.	Water, Energy And	Poor garbage collection and	Creation of garbage collection points and trucks to
	Environment	disposal.	be allocated within the ward.
		Inadequate water supply	Replacement of old pipe water and exploring alternative source of water.
		Blocked sewer lines.	Contracting the youths within the ward to unblock sewer lines
			Provision of dustbins instead of plastic bags
3.	Education	Drug abuse and prostitution	Sensitization and education.
4	Health	among the youths	Increase allocation for the non-communicable
4.	Health	Poor hygiene habits in private schools	diseases.
		SCHOOLS	diseases.
			Supervision by public health officers to ensure
			hygiene standard.
		Inadequate water supply in kayole 2 hospital	Provision of alternative water supply in hospital.
		Lack of medicine in kayole 2	Ensuring there is adequate supply of medicine.

		hospital	
5.	Physical Planning, Lands And	Grabbed public land.	Repossession of grabbed land.
	Urban Planning		
		Encroachment of land	
		reserves.	Repossess the encroached areas
		Modernization of social halls	Constructing of a multi-storey building to
			accommodate more facilities

3.3.46 KILELESHWA WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Transport And Roads	Poor roads.	Rehabilitation of roads Gichugu road.
			Waiyaki way potholes to be filled.
			Uyeri road to be carpeted
			Garden road to be constructed.
		Public lighting.	Mboni and Masera lights to be repaired
			Waruka street lights to be repaired and walkway to be done
		Githunguri road.	
			Expansion and construction of Githunguri
2.	Physical Planning, Lands And Urban Planning	Land grabbing.	Reclamation of grabbed lands
3.	Trade	No trading spaces.	Construction of Waruku market
4.	Governor's Office	No ward office.	Ward office to be constructed at either
			police post or Kileleshwa primary
			schools

3.3.47 KILIMANI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Environment Water And Sanitation	No water	Water to be drilled as a matter of urgency.
		No social hall	Too much activities going on in Kilimani county to provide a social hall
		Garbage collection	Supply bins for litter and garbage collection points
2.	Trade Tourism And Industrialization And Cooperative	No markets	Purchase of a land for a market to empower small entrepreneurs.
	-	No open air markets	Identify and purchaser land for open air market
3.	Public Works, Roads,	No speed bumps	The markers to be considered for

	Transport And Infrastructure		construction of speed bumps
			Speed bumps outside little academy
		Poor sewer system.	Sewer line at Ghana avenue.
			Upgrade the existing sewer to
			accommodate heavy construction
4.	Education	No perimeter wall	Perimeter wall to be constructed around
			milimani primary school
		Capacity building for the co-curriculum activities	Development of sports programs
		No social hall	Construction of a resource centre
5.	Health	Poor resource management in the health centres	Equipping of daily house clinic
		No drug and professional medical	
		resource	Facilitate and provide resource
			management staff

3.3.48 KWA-NJENGA WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Transport and public works	Poor drainage system Poor condition and inaccessible feeder	Embakasi girls-njenga primary school quarry drainage to be expanded
		roads	Rehabilitation of feeder roads
		Street lighting	Rehabilitation of installed lights Pedestrian pathways to be put up after construction
		Rampant accidents e.g. Knocking down of bodaboda	Construction of bumps to slow down bodaboda
2.	Water, Energy And Environment	Lack of proper garbage collection	Allocation of track for garbage collection
		Demoralization of community volunteers	Designate a garbage collection point
		No public water points	Facilitation of community teams that have volunteered
		Waste management	To work on environment and water
			Putting up of water points
			Educate the youths on waste management
3.	Health	Stalled NYS projects to build clinics	Fast tracking of NYS facility.
		Demoralization of CHVs in helping the	

		communities Infestation of rodents	Facilitation of CHVs and support their activities Regular fumigation in the ward
4.	Education ,Youth, Sports And Culture	Lack of secondary school for boys Vulnerability of youths that results to drug abuse	Construction of boys secondary school. Allocation to be set aside to motivate and appreciate gender defenders.
5.	Physical Planning Lands	Inaccessible villages especially during emergencies	Sensitization of youths about drug abuse Proper planning of the village Holding of public barazas
6.	Trade Industrialization Cooperatives And Tourism	Land grabbing Traders selling along he pedestrian paths	Reclamation and repossession of more than 100 public pieces of land grabbed Eviction of traders from selling along pedestrian paths

3.3.49 KWARE WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, Cooperative And	No markets	Construction of market and business
	Tourism		stalls
		Unavailability of modern kiosks	
			County government to come up with
2	E1 d	ECD	modern kiosks in Kware
2.	Education	ECD centres	Construction of ECD centres
		Playing grounds	
		No community hall	Construction of social halls
		Construction of polytechnics	Construction of special schools
		Schools for physically challenged kids	
		Consideration of CBOS	
		No libraries	Construction of libraries
3.	Health	Facilitation of community health workers	Should get some motivations or
		[volunteers]	allowances
		T	
		Equipment to be used by health workers	Community health workers to be issued
4.	Water, Environment and	Cawar ayatam	with equipment Expansion of sewer system
4.	Energy	Sewer system	Expansion of sewer system
		No garbage collection points	Garbage collection points
5.	Urban Planning And Lands	Land grabbing.	People of Kware to be allocated their
			land
6.	Transport, Roads And Public	Public lights	To be rehabilitated and fixed where
	Woks		necessary

3.3.50 NAIROBI SOUTH WARD

S/NO.	SECTORS	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Urban Renewal And Housing	No development of county houses	Development in the slums
2.	Education And Youth	Street Boys And Children	Construction Of Rehabilitation Facility And Resource Centre For The Youths
		Drug And Substance Abuse	Small And Young Children To Be Taken To Children Homes
3.	Water And Environment	Sewer burst	Fix sewage systems to avert diseases
		Revive a public toilet	Rehabilitation of public toilets at Fuata Nyayo
		Garbage at the shopping centre	Provide litter bins Encourage youths to clean the area, ward admin to organize
4.	Health	Lack of medicine at police band health center and Mbagathi clinic	Procure adequate medicine for health centres
		No working tools during clean up exercise Community health workers are not supported No health centres to serve for	Community health workers to be provided with tools of trade eg gloves, gumboots and airtime for coordination
		24hrs Payment of health care follow on dialysis	Introduce a 24hr service health centre Dialysis to be provided
		Rats infestation	Excommunicate rodents from the village e.g. Rats
5.	Public Service Management	No adequate doctors in health centres	Employ more doctors
		Consider employment of community health workers	Public service management to advise on employment allowances
6.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Lack of proper sewer system in Nairobi south	Nairobi water to respond on sewer rehabilitation and construction of the same in areas where there is urgent need
		Grabbed land to construct drainages	Repossess the grabbed land for the rehabilitation system.
7.	Agriculture	Freed animals and unmanaged roaming animals	Elimination of stray dogs and management of slaughter houses personnel and veterinary
		Poor and lack of knowhow on agriculture.	applications Extension of agricultural education services
8.	Trade	Lack of open air markets	Makuti land was secured as a market land
			Identification of space to build open air markets
			an markets

Lack of finance education offices	Provisional sensitization on cooperative development
Lack of markets	Construction of community market Hazina market to be restored The citizens ready to repossess the land which was grabbed The traders to visit the trade development office of county for provision of loans

3.3.51 GATINA WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads and Transport	Drainages are in a pathetic state causing havoc to residents.	Rehabilitation of the drainage in consultation with the residents.
		Streetlights are not functional and residents contribute to pay KPLC officers for help.	Maintenance of streetlights installed in the area Timely switching of streetlights to save energy. Installation of streetlights along the road
		Poor drainage and insecurity	Rehabilitation.
2.	Education	Lack of vocational training schools	Vocational training centre to be constructed in the ward
3	Urban Planning	Lack of proper planning during or before construction	Proper planning of the 6 acres land for the school to accommodate the several projects proposed
4.	Water And Environment	Sewer line in Congo and Kamitha	Construction of a proper sewer line in Congo and Kamitha
5.	Trade And Industrialization	Lack of markets hence rampant hawking on roads	Acquisition of land to build a market for the people
6.	Health	Women losing lives during delivery and also unhygienic deliveries	Reclamation or procurement of land for construction of public health facility Separation of water pipes from the sewer lines to ensure safety of water
		Lack of clean drinking water for the residents	Acquisition of space to put up a water [purification points

3.3.52 RUAI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water & Environment	Water Shortage in the ward.	Provision of clean & continuously flowing piped water.
			Reorganization of the entire water system by NCWSC in the ward.
		Water Cartels in the ward.	Vandalization of the water cartels to ensure residents has access to clean water.

		Lack of Proper sewer lines in the area.	Construction of a proper sewerage system in the ward.
		Lack of public toilet in the Stadium	Construction of a public toilet in the stadium.
2.	Health	Inability to handle health emergencies.	Additional ambulance for the facility. The facility should operationalize 24 hours services.
		Lack of maternity services	Equipment of the health facility with maternity equipment.
		Insecurity in the area.	Perimeter wall around the hospital facility & installation of flood lights.
3.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	Poor state of roads.	Gravelling & rehabilitation of the road in Kamunyonge area & from Eastern Bypass.
		Insecurity	Erection of streetlights along Kamunyonge & floodlights at Giathego
		Poor drainage system.	Rehabilitation of the drainage in Giathego along Nairobi River.
		Disturbance by lorries by Mavoko	Designated routes to be set for the lorries.
4.	Governor's Office.	Lack of administrative boundaries between Ruai & Utawala Wards.	Erection of sign boards to mark the boundary between the two wards.
		Cess evasion by lorries from Mavoko	Routes to be compelled to follow designated routes & pay the required fees.

3.3.53 ROYSAMBU WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water & Environment	Drainage Problems.	Construction & rehabilitation of the drainage system.
		Waste disposal problems.	Provision of garbage points and collection bins.
		Need for more public toilets	Additional public toilets to be built in Marurui & Roasters.
2.	Health	Inadequate health services	Expansion of Marurui Health center to also provide maternity services.
		No drug	Provision of adequate medicine in the health center.
3.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	No Bus stage. Insecurity	Bus stop and shades to be constructed. Motorcycle operators to have their identification tags through Sacco.
4.	Governor's Office.	No ward offices	Roysambu Ward Governors offices to be constructed.
5.	Education, Culture & Social Services.	No provision for social facility.	Social hall prior to acquisition of land/identification of public land.

			Recreational facility needed to be constructed.
6.	Trade, Co-Operatives & Enterprise Development.	Absence of trading areas	Construction of modern kiosks & stalls

3.3.54 DANDORA WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water & Environment	Water Shortage in the ward.	Provision of clean & continuously flowing piped water.
2.	Health	Insufficient health services	Provide more services at the health Centre. Equip it with more qualified stock and provide adequate medicine.
3.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	Poor state of roads.	Rehabilitation of Road Ebeneza to Rosebella.
4.	Governor's Office.	No administrative offices	Phase 2 social hall construction of Ward officer's offices & Expansion of the hall.
5.	Education	Lack of community area.	Demarcation with a perimeter fence at wangu Primary for community usage
			Renovation of the social hall.

3.3.55 MABATINI WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water & Environment	Water Shortage in the ward. Poor sewer systems Lack of public toilet Poor waste management.	Provision of clean & continuously flowing piped water.(Water ATM machines to be installed) Construction of a proper sewerage system in the ward. (Rehabilitation & expansion of existing ones). Construction of a public toilet within the ward. Provision of garbage collection trucks in the ward. Garbage collection point and collection
2.	Health	Lack of public hospital. Lack of maternity services Negligence of NCD Patients.	schedule to be established. Completion of the set up hospital structure. Putting up a maternity facility.
			Increase the allocation for NCD treatment and management.
3.	Trade, Co-Operatives Enterprise Development.	Lack of stalls	Erection of modern kiosks in the ward.
4.	Education Culture & Social Services.	Drug abuse among the youth.	Rehabilitation Centre to be established next to chiefs camp.

	Lack of playground & recreational facilities. No ECD center in the	Putting up recreational facility & playground for talent development. (Interward tournaments to be organized.
	ward	
		ECD Centre to be put up in Mathare
		Polytechnic.

3.3.56 UTHIRU RUTHIMITU WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water & Environment	No water connection	Connection of water by NCWSC.
		No public toilet	Construction of a public toilet.
		Current tank at the chief's camp.	Repair & renovate the current water tank at the chief's camp.
		Garbage gulleys hence soil erosion	
2.	Health	No medicine at the Muthua dispensary.	Provision of medicine at the health centre.
3.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	No roads in Uthiru Area.	Construction of roads.
		Need for public lights in Mukiri Road	Installation of street lights.
		Public lights not functioning in Muchene road, Mugi road & Mukiri roads.	
		No .link road at Muchene- Kiuru Road.	Rehabilitation of roads.
		No link road at Muchene- Kagodo	
		Upgrading of all roads.	
4.	Governor's Office.	No goal related with the city county.	Ward development committee to set.
		No communication between the community & County government	Ward administrator to streamline communication.
		No ward administrators office & sub-county administration.	Acquisition of land to construct the offices.

5.	Lands & Physical	Land grabbing	Reclamation of public land grabbed.
	Planning.	Dangerous structures built along the river	Restrict establishment of structures along the River reserve.
6.	Finance & Economic Planning.	No mechanisms for overseeing monitoring & evaluation of projects.	Establish a monitoring and evaluation committees at the ward level.
7.	Education, Youth, Culture & Social Services.	No EDC Centre	Construct ECD center.
		Need for Vocational Training.	Establish a youth vocational training center.
			Establish a youth recreational center.
		No library	Construct a public library.
8.	Housing	Poor housing in the APs Quarters at the chiefs camp	Provision of iron sheets to renovate AP's quarters at the chiefs camp.
9.	Urban Planning & Lands	No public utility for development.	Pursuit for space
10	Agriculture, Livestock & Fisheries.	Shamba at Mukuru ward for Agriculture.	Establish a rabbit keeping farm & agricultural centre.

3.3.57 ZIMMERMAN WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Environment, Water And Sanitation	Water Shortage in the ward.(Frequent water rationing). -No Water at Sidian Estate Sewer septic over flow from TRM-Roysambu Lumumba drive.	-A bigger pipe to be put at Soft Road. - Co-Operative to remove the small pipes along the road. -Construction of sewer & sewer line connections at Zimmerman Sidian Estate or area. -Terraces/drainage storm water to be constructed in the area. -All open storm water drainages to be established. -Sewer line to be established from TRM Roysambu flooring up to Home Depot supermarket to control storm rain water. -Improve the sewerage line
2.	Health	Need for rehabilitation services Increase in Non-	-Rehabilitation centre required to be established. -Include treatment of the N.C.Ds in the

		Communicable Diseases.	ward health facility.
3.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	1) Poor state of roads.	-Recarpeting of the road from Thika road to ODM
			-More street lights required.(At street near medics, behind Equity bank, behind wambuti supermarket & at the gabbage)
4.	Governors Office.	1).Lack of administrative offices	-Ward office to be constructed along the Thika superhighway
5.	Lands & Physical	1)Land grabbing	-Reclamation of public land grabbed.
	Planning.	2)Dangerous structures built along the river	-Restrict establishment of structures along the River reserve.
6.	Education	1)Poor state of learning institution	-Construction of perimeter wall at Roysambu Pry School.

3.3.58 WAITHAKA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, Industry & Enterprise Development.	No market in the ward.	Construction of a market.
2.	Roads, Transport & Public Works.	Rurii kwa Wametho bridge.	Construction of the bridge.
		Access road are in poor state	Ngina road to be rehabilitated.
		No public lighting along St. Michaels	Installation of public lighting
		Ndwaru road in poor state	Construction of Ndwaru road which has stopped
		Fire Station Hospital	Construction and equipping of the fire station.
3.	Education& Social Services.	No playground for the community.	Establishment of playground.
4.	Water, Environment and Sanitation	No public toilets in the ward.	Construction of public toilets.
		No access to water in Jerusalem –Karii.	Provision of water.
		No sewer system.	Construction of sewer lines.
5.	Health	Inadequate drugs in the	Sufficient drug supply.

health center.	Extension to maternity wing.
No maternity services.	Purchase of an ambulance.
No ambulance services.	

3.3.59 LUCKY SUMMER WARD

S/NO	Sector	Characteristics/Issue	Proposed Projects
1.	Public Works, Roads And Transport	Lighting in Mugure Road Blue collar Gatheca Baba dogo-Lucky summer link road through Blue collar Lighting especially in the access roads	Installation of public lighting Rehabilitation of drainage system and the road Additional lighting Repair and rehabilitation of existing ones Rehabilitation of the road
2.	Education, Youths, Culture And Social Services	Gatheca Junction-Lucky summer Road ECD centers in the ward	Construction of an ECD center(county to purchase land in the ward) Construction of a vocational training center
		Youth polytechnic for youth empowerment and skills acquisition Public social hall (Existing social hall is privately owned)	Establishment of a county owned social hall
3.	Health	Public health	Construction of an equipped health facility
4.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Sanitation facilities e.g. toilets	Construction of a public toilet
5.	Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries, Forestry And Natural Resources	Waste management. Accessibility to water for farming.	Establishment of a recycling center for waste Water provision.
		Promotion of poultry farming.	Establishment of poultry units and infrastructure.

3.3.60 UTAWALA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water, Energy And Environment	Lack of piped water	Provision of clean piped water.
		No sewer system.	Construction of sewer lines in the ward.
		No sanitation facility e.g. Public toilets	Construction of public toilets.
2.	Roads. Transport And Public Works	Inadequate street lights.	Installation of streetlights in Tausi, Utawala central, Embakasi ranches.
		Bad state of roads in the ward.	Recarpeting of Benedicta-Ruai loop road, footpath.
		Poor storm water drainage.	Rehabilitation.
		Encroachment into road reserve.	Rehabilitation of quarry along kangundo road.
3.	Education, Youth Sports Culture, Social Services	No social hall in the ward.	Construction of a social hall.
		No ECD center.	Establishment of an ECD Center.
		No vocational training center for youth.	Construction of youth polytechnic.
4.	Health	No ambulance services.	Purchase of an ambulance.
		No public health facility in the ward.	Construction of a public health facility.
5.	Trade, Cooperatives and Tourism	Lack of public market.	Construction of modern market.

3.3.61 WOODLEY WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Works, Roads, Transport And Infrastructure.	Inadequate lighting.	Installation of flood lights at Toi market and at Moi Girls.
			Maintenance of the installed public lights at Dagoretti Corner.
		Poor roads in the ward.	Rehabilitation of Adams Arcade- Joseph Kang'ethe road, as well as its drainage and pedestrian walk way.
2.	Education, Gender, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of social resource centers in the ward	Rehabilitation of Joseph Kang'ethe hall and NCC hall at the City Askaris' residence in Dagoretti Corner.
			Equipping Woodley grounds on Kinoo road with recreational facilities.
		Increased brothels in the name of massage SPAs	Enforcement of County by laws that regulate operations of such ventures.
		as well as alcohol and substance abuse in the	Enforcement of NEMA and NACADA regulations with regards to noise
		ward	pollution and drug & substance abuse.

3.	Health Services	Inadequate equipment in the health facilities	Provision of more equipment to Ngong road dispensary and Woodley clinic. Provision of drugs and adequate staffing of the health facilities. Procurement of an ambulance for the facilities in the ward.
4.	Water, Sanitation, Energy And Environment	Inadequate water supply within the water in the ward. Poor garbage handling	Provision of clean, safe and continuous flowing tapped water for domestic use within the ward. Designation of garbage collection points at Dagoretti corner, outside Kenyatta market and outside Toi market. Garbage extraction from the Toi market dumpsite.
5.	Trade, Commerce, Industrialization And Tourism	Encroachment of road reserves by traders	Rehabilitation of Toi market into a modern market, installing enough modern kiosks for the traders.

3.3.62 PIPELINE WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	INTERVENTIONS
1.	Governor's office	No ward administration offices.	Provision of a container for the office.
		Poor communication to the public.	Better channels of communication to enhance participation.
2.	Urban planning and Housing	Grabbing of public land set aside for public utilities.	Repossession of public land.
3.	Roads, Transport and Public Works	In complete roads e.g. Kimondo road.	Completion of Kimondo road.
		Public lighting.	Put up street lights at along the Huruma nursing home road.
		Poor drainage system.	Rehabilitation of the drainage system.
4.	Health	No public health centre in the area.	Provision for containers for public clinics at Pipeline near railway, Lenana estate, and along Kimondo road where there is open space.
			Equipping with ambulance services, drugs, etc.
5.	Water, Energy, Environment and Sanitation.	Frequent water shortages.	Provision of clean and adequate water
		Poor Waste Management in the ward.	Provision of garbage trucks. Designated collection points.
		Inadequate sanitation facilities e.g. public toilets	Construction of public toilets at stage mpya market.
6.	Trade, Cooperatives and Tourism.	Poor state of Stage mpya Market.	Upgrade of the market.

	No modern kiosks.	Construction of modern kiosks at
		Avenue park 2- Tumaini.

3.3.63 NJIRU WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, Cooperatives and Tourism.	Inadequate trading spaces.	Construction of modern kiosks at Maili Saba, Mwengenye, Siranga, Njiru shopping center.
2.	Agriculture, Livestock and fisheries.	Need for promotion of urban agriculture and poultry farming.	Provision of extension services in the ward. Sensitization of the community on urban agriculture.
3.	Water, Energy, Environment and Natural Resources.	Poorly connected sewer lines. Inadequate clean water. No garbage bins and trucks.	Rehabilitation of sewer system in the ward. Construction of sewer lines from Saika-Mowlem-Maili saba-Joyvilla-No 18-KPCU Siranga. Construction of sewer extensions from Kangundo road – Saika-Makongemwengenye B. Provision of clean piped water. Regular supply of water. Provision of bins at Saika,
		No garbage trucks. Inadequate tree cover in the ward.	Mwengenye, Njiru shopping center and Njiru health center. Provision of a garbage truck in the ward. Planting of trees along roads.
4.	Education, Social services and youth affairs.	No ECD center. Lack of a youth training center. Poor state of Mwengenye resource center and poorly equipped. Inadequate bursary allocation.	Construction of an ECD center at Jehovah Jireh and Chemichemi. Construction of a polytechnic at Njiru ageri along Njiru-Mwiki road. Staffing and rehabilitation of the center. Increased budget allocation for the ward.
5.	Roads, Public works and infrastructure.	No adequate lighting. Poor access roads in the ward. Poor drainage system.	Streetlights and flood lights in the whole ward. Rehabilitation and gravelling of all access roads.

			Rehabilitation of drainages in the ward.
6.	Health	Poor equipping of Njiru	Provision of drugs, adequate water,
		Health center.	ambulance services.
			Extension to maternity wing.
		Incomplete Maili Saba health center.	Completion.
			Construction of perimeter wall.
			Equipping and staffing.
		Mwengenye hospital.	Construction of ablution block
			Perimeter wall.

3.3.64 KARURA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Public Service Management	Unemployment among the locals.	Locals in the area to be given casual jobs.
2.	Trade Commerce Cooperatives And Tourism	No modern kiosks.	Construction of modern kiosks at Githogoro.
3.	Urban Renewal And Housing	Poor state of county houses.	Rehabilitation and upgrade of the county houses next to Karura health center, to modern houses
4.	Education, Youth Children And Social Services.	No social hall.	Construction of a mini-hall at city park market. Construction of an equipped social hall at Githogoro.
5.	Urban Planning And Lands.	Grabbed public land.	Repossession of grabbed land at City Park, Riparian land between Rosslyn and village market, Road reserve next to Kobil, Public utilities at Githogoro.
6.	Finance And Economic Planning	Devolution in offices.	Devolution of services to ward level.
7.	Governor's Office	Incomplete ward offices.	Completion and full equipping of ward offices.
		No vehicle for ward officer to aid in movement.	Transport facilitation to enhance service delivery.
8.	Agriculture, Livestock And Fisheries.	Need for promotion of urban agriculture.	Facilitation of extension services to the community.
			Provision of tree seedlings at City park market.
9.	Health	Inadequate drug supply.	Provision of adequate drug supply at Karura dispensary, Maji mazuri at Githogoro.
10.	Roads, Transport And Public Works	Inadequate public lighting.	Additional high mast lights. Repair and maintenance of existing ones.
		Poor drainage system.	Provision of storm water drainage.
		No footbridge.	

			Construction if foot bridge connecting
			City park-Pangani.
11.	Water, Energy, Environment And Sanitation	No sanitation facilities.	Construction of public toilets at
			Githogoro & Kwa Njoroge.
		Poor garbage	
		management	Establish garbage collection points.
		Water shortage.	Provision of water at City park market & Kwa Njoroge.
		D	Debabilitation at Citherana and Wass
		Poorly-connected sewer lines.	Rehabilitation at Githogoro and Kwa Njoroge.

3.3.65 LAND MAWE WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Agriculture , Livestock And Fisheries	Stray dogs.	Establish animal shelters.
2.	Roads, Transport An Public Works	Inadequate public lighting.	Repair and maintenance of lights at Kamega area.
		Poor drainage in the ward.	Rehabilitation of the systems.
3.	Health	No Ambulance services. Inadequate medicines in	Purchase of an ambulance for the ward.
		health center.	Adequate drug supply.
		No dental services at Land mawe health center.	Provision for dental health care e.g. personnel and equipment.
		Inadequate health care for patients with Non communicable diseases.	Provision of care and drugs.
4.	Water, Environment And Sanitation	Inaccessibility to water. No public toilet.	Provide adequate supply of water. Construction.
		Narrow sewers at crescent road.	Expansion of sewers.
5.	Governor's Office	No clear Communication with public.	Use of posters, notices on newspapers etc. to publicize the forums. Need too brand county projects.
		Insufficient information on county projects.	recet too braine county projects.
6.	Education, Youth Affairs And Social Services	No public ECD centers.	Construction of ECD centers.
		No vocational training facilities.	Construction of vocational training facility.
		Bursary allocations.	Facilitate adequate bursary allocation for the needy.
		No special services for special persons.	Construction of special needs facility.

3.3.66 IMARA DAIMA WARD

S/NO	Sector	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Roads ,Transport And Public Works	Manhole at Maziwa stage	To be covered.
		Poor sewerage system.	Repair sewer lines at Cosmas Ndeti.
		Rehabilitation of street lights.	High mast behind Bright Brain Academy.
2.	Trade, Cooperatives and Tourism	No business stalls.	Build business stalls at Maziwa.
3.	Urban Renewal, Housing and Building services.	Slums.	Slum housing upgrade.
4.	Education, Children, Youth and Social Services	No ECD in Imara Daima.	Construction of an ECD school.
5.	Health	Poor state of health center in the ward.	Equipping and upgrade the status of the hospitals

3.3.67 KABIRO WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Water Environment And Sanitation	Inadequate water.	Access to adequate and clean water.
		Unclean water.	
2	Governor's Office	No firefighting facility.	Construction of fire station at Kabiro.
3.	Youth Education And Sports	No youth Polytechnics in the ward.	Construction of polytechnics at Kabiro.
		Kabiro playgrounds	Upgrade the facility
		Lack of a special school at Kabiro.	Construction of special school at Kabiro.
5	Roads Transport And Public Works	Incomplete Muthiora road.	Completion 0f Muthiora road.
		Inadequate lights in the small feeder roads.	Installation of lights.
		Access roads	Repair and maintenance of the access roads.
		Masjid Noor road has poor drainage.	Installation of drainage pipes.
		Poor sewer system.	Rehabilitation of sewers.

3.3.68 LOWER SAVANNA WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1	Transport Public Works And Infrastructure	Poor drainages.	Construct trenches to direct water to the main drainage.

		High mast not lighting.	Maintenance of lights installed.
		Poor state of access roads.	Repair all access roads.
2.	Water And Sanitation	Tampered water pipelines.	Repair of pipes.
3.	Public Service Management	Unemployment especially among the youths.	Create job opportunities by involving the youth in community clean ups.
4.	Youth Education And Sports	No polytechnics.	Construct at least one polytechnic to serve youths.
		Congestion of students in schools.	Construct more schools or addition of new classes in the current schools.
		No playing ground.	Provision of a playing ground.
5.	Health	Under-equipped dispensaries in the area.	Equip and facilitate drugs and additional health officers in the local health facility.

3.3.69 NG'ANDO WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Transport Public Works And Infrastructure	Mama Wahu Road not complete over a long span. Non-functional street lights.	Complete Mama Wahu Road. Rehabilitate the street lights.
		Poor conditions of access roads.	Upgrade all access roads.
		Land grabbing by private developers.	Recovery of all public grabbed land.
		Lack of a social hall.	Construct a social hall.
2.	Water And Sanitation	Lack of fresh water for consumption.	Provision of clean water.
		Blocked sewer pipes.	Rehabilitation of all sewer pipes in the ward.
		Lack of public toilets.	Construct public toilets.
3.	Youth, Sports And Education	Lack of investments to nurture talent.	Allocate more funds geared towards nurturing young talent.
4.	Health	Lack of public health facilities while the existing one is under- staffed.	Provide alternative health facilities and add more health workers.

3.3.70 KOMAROCK WARD

S\NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Transport Public Works And Infrastructure	Lack of an open air	Construction of modern market stalls.

		market. Bad state of Malewa road. Lack of enough street lights.	Recarpeting of Malewa Road. Add more street lights and maintain them.
2.	Water and Sanitation	Incomplete construction of the drainage system along section T.	Complete drainage construction in the estate.
3.	Youth, Sports and Education	Lack of a perimeter wall at Komarock Primary. Lack of an ECD facility.	Construction of a perimeter wall around the school. Provision of an ECD facility.
4.	Health	Lack of a maternal and a health facility.	Construction of a health and maternal facility along Spine Road.

3.3.71 KARIOBANGI NORTH WARD

S\NO	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Poor road conditions.	Upgrading of all access roads especially Market road to Riverside and Kamunde.
		Poor public lighting.	Set-up street lights.
2.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And Natural Resources Health	Poor drainage system. Lack of garbage	Rehabilitate the drainage system.
		collection points.	Designate specific points for dumping.
		Lack of trees.	Planting of trees around the area.
		Poor sewer system	Rehabilitate the sewer system.
3.	Health	Poor state of the Kariobangi North dispensary and Nyayo wards referral hospital.	Rehabilitation of the health facilities and equipping them once completed and commissioned.
4.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social Services	Lack of a perimeter wall at Kariobangi North Primary School.	Erect a perimeter wall around the school.
		Lack of a social hall.	Construct a social hall and equip it.

3.3.72 KAWANGWARE WARD

S\NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And Natural Resources	Poor sewer system.	Rehabilitate the sewer system.
	Health	Less frequent collection of garbage.	Increase the frequency of collecting garbage.
2.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Congestion I n the market.	Construction of an open air market or adjust the current market to be bigger.
		Poor access roads.	Upgrade all access roads.

			Complete installing street lights.
		Incomplete installation	
		of street lights.	
3.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And	Over-population in	Construct more classes in the existing
	Social Services.	schools.	local schools.
		Lack of a social hall.	Construct a social hall and equip it with facilities.

3.3.73 MIHANG'O WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTIONS
1.	Water, Environment, Energy, Forestry And	No sewer system.	Installation of the sewer system.
	Natural Resources.	No sanitation facilities e.g. Public toilets.	Construction of public toilets.
		No environmental care.	
		Contaminated water.	Beautification and planting of trees.
			Ratification of water.
2.	Transport, Roads, Public Works And Infrastructure	Poor state of roads in the ward.	Gravelling of Kihonge-dispensary road, Capitol hill-Mihang`o secondary, Kangundo road –Boston, Shujaa road- Sunrise.
		No streetlights along Kangundo Road, Mava primary, Hera-link Road.	Put-up street lights along these roads.
		No bumps.	
		No bus stop at Hera.	Erection of bumps at Kibiko Road- Eastern bypass.
		Poor drainage system.	Construction of a bus stop.
			Rehabilitation.
3.	Education, Youth Affairs, Sports, Culture And Social	Addiction cases.	Rehabilitation of the affected.
	Services.		Rescue center.
		Poor state of Maua and Mihang`o primary schools.	Levelling of fields.
		Selfodis.	Perimeter wall.
			Construction of special classrooms for special children.
		Incomplete Mihang`o stadium.	Completion of the stadium.
		No social hall.	•
		No youth training center.	Construction of a social hall.
		No ECD center.	Construction of youth polytechnic center.
			Establish ECD classes in Maua and Mihang'o primary.
4.	Trade, Cooperatives. Tourism.	No market in Mihang`o.	Construction of an open air market.

5.	Agriculture, Livestock And	griculture, Livestock And Need for promotion of urban farming among	
	Fisheries	the youth and women.	
6.	6. Governor's Office No ward administration offices.		Construction of ward offices.
			Perimeter fencing.
7.	Public Service Management	No facilitation of ECD teachers by county.	ECD teachers be paid by the county.

3.3.74 NAIROBI CENTRAL WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water, Environment, Energy And Sanitation	Poor waste management. Inaccessibility to clean water at City Market.	Provision of bins, trucks and designated collection points. Water tanks to be installed.
		Poor sanitation facilities at St. Peter's cleavers school.	
			Construction of toilets in the school.
2.	Roads , Transport And Public Works	Congestion in the CBD.	Decongest by decentralizing parking spaces.
		Poor roads i.e. Moi lane, Rendire road, Access roads: Muthurwa market-Landhies road.	Rehabilitation of the roads.
		Disorder along Ronald Ngala -Racecourse road.	
			Construction of Pavements.
3.	Education, Children, Youth And Social Services	Rise in street families.	Rehabilitation of street children and integration into the education system.
			Provision of Housing and care.
4.	Health	No ambulance services.	Allocation of ambulances in the ward.
		Inadequate drugs in health center.	Access to drugs.
5.	Public Service Management	Lack of professional staff to work in health	Employment of adequately skilled
	C 2 CC	facilities in the ward.	personnel.
6.	Governor's Office	Harassment by city Askaris.	Retraining of the officers.
		Insecurity at Muthurwa market footbridge.	
			Deployment of Askaris.
7.	Urban Planning And Lands	Grabbing of land at Muthurwa social hall.	Perimeter fencing of the area.
8.	Trade, Cooperatives And Tourism	Recognition of monuments e.g. Chapii mosque.	Funding for the mosque to be considered a monument.

3.3.75 SARANG`OMBE WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Water, Energy, Environment And Sanitation	Poor waste management.	Purchase of a garbage truck. Establishment of another garbage
		Water shortage.	collection point. Establishment of a water point in the ward.

2.	Education, Children, Youth And Social Services.	Lack of social halls.	Construction of a social hall and resource center.
		Inadequate bursary funds.	More allocation to bursaries for the needy.
3.	Agriculture, Livestock And Fisheries	Stray dogs.	Provision of animal shelters.
		Need for the Promotion of urban farming.	Sensitization of the community on urban agriculture e.g. Poultry farming and agribusiness.
4.	Urban Planning And Lands	Grabbed public land.	Repossession of public lands set aside for public utilities.
5.	Governor`s Office	Frequent fire outbreaks.	Provision of safety kits, and sensitization of public on fire response.
		No ward administration offices.	Construction of ward offices.
6.	Roads, Transport And Public Works	Poor public lighting.	High mast erection at Kinela area.
		Blocked drainages.	Rehabilitation of drainages form Kianda Soweto and Ayany areas.
		Poor state of existing bridge.	Maintenance of the bridge from ward administration office –Equity bank.
		Broken bridge.	Construction of a bridge at 42 stage.
7.	Health	Lack of a public health center in the ward.	Construction of a public health center after repossession of land.

3.3.76 MATOPENI WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Trade, Cooperatives And Tourism	No trading facilities.	Establishment of an open air market.
2.	Health	No public health center in the	Establishment of a mobile clinic in the
		ward.	ward.
			Equip with drugs and immunization
			facilities.
3.	Education, Youth, Children And Social	No social hall.	Construction of a social hall in the
	Services.		ward.
		Inadequate ECD facilities.	Additional classrooms for ECD
			children.
		Insecurity issues at Matopeni	
		primary.	Perimeter fencing.
4.	Water, Environment, Energy And	Poor waste management.	Establishment of garbage collection
	Sanitation		points.

5.	Roads, Transport And Public Works	Inadequate public lighting at Twisters, Mosque, Mana bridge, Mama Safi area, Kwa njenga	Installation of more lights, 3 high masts and 10 low ones.
		Poor drainage systems at Spine road-slaughterhouse-Kangundo road.	Rehabilitation of drainage systems.
		No footbridge in Mana area- Bridge, Mosque, Spring valley, ABC.	Construction of the bridge.
		Poor access roads esp. Old Kangundo-Spring Valley road.	
			Rehabilitation of the roads.

3.3.77 KAYOLE CENTRAL WARD

S/NO	SECTOR	ISSUE	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Roads, Transport And Public Works	Poor access roads.	Recarpeting of access roads in the ward.
		Blocked drainages.	Rehabilitation of the drainage systems.
2.	Health	Lack of a public health center in the ward.	Construction of a dispensary and equipping of facility.
		Inadequate drug supply in existing clinic (South) No ambulance services in the ward.	Equipping of the clinic.
			Purchase of an ambulance for the Ward.
3.	Education, Children, Youth And Social Services	Poor state of Bondeni primary school.	Renovation of the school, additional classrooms.
			Construction of a perimeter wall.
			Rehabilitation of playground.
		Lack of an ECD center.	Construction of a stand-alone ECD center.
		No youth training centers. Inadequate youth	Construction of youth polytechnic.
		empowerment.	Incentives for youth empowerment.
4.	Water, Energy, Environment And Sanitation.	Water shortage.	Construction of water tanks.
			Restoration of water pipes.
		Poor waste management in the market area.	Establishment of a collection point within the market area.
			Provision of garbage trucks.

		Lack of sanitation facilities in the ward.	Construction of public toilets at Bondeni Primary and behind Co-
		Poorly-connected sewer lines.	operative bank.
			Repair and expansion of sewer lines.
5.	Trade, Cooperatives And Tourism	Inadequate lighting in the market.	Installation of lights.
		No sheds for Juakali traders.	Set up an area with sheds for Jua kali traders.
6.	Governor's Office	No ward administration offices.	Construction of the offices in the ward.

3.3.78 BABA DOGO WARD

S/NO.	SECTOR	ISSUES	PROPOSED INTERVENTION
1.	Health	Inadequate drugs and non- pharmaceuticals Lack of laboratory services Lack of ambulance	Provision of drugs and immunization facilities. Provision of laboratory services Provision of ambulance services
		Lack of facilitation of community health workers	Facilitation of CHWs
2.	Education, Youth, Children And Social Services.	No social hall.	Construction of a social hall in the ward. Additional classrooms for ECD children.
		Inadequate ECD facilities.	
		Insecurity issues at Baba Dogo primary.	Perimeter fencing.
3.	Water, Environment, Energy And Sanitation	Poor waste management.	Establishment of garbage collection points.
4.	Trade, Commerce, Cooperatives and Tourism	Lack of trading space/market	Construction of market stalls

3.4 WARDS WHERE MTEF MEETINGS FAILED

S NO.	WARD	REASON	VENUE	DATE OF MEETING
1.	KANGEMI	Community were rowdy	Kangemi Social Hall	3/11/16
2.	NYAYO	Insecurity	Nyayo Highrise Offices	14/11/16
	HIGHRISE			
3.	MOUNTAIN	Insecurity	Kangemi Social Hall	3/11/16
	VIEW			
4.	PARKLANDS	Public did not attend	Hospital Hill Pry Sch	4/11/16
5.	CLAY CITY	Change of meeting time	Mahiga Pry Sch	11/11/2016
		from 9 AM to 2 PM and		
		venue		
6.	GITHURAI	Public did not attend but	Githurai 45 Pry Sch	11/11/16
		forwarded memorandum		
7.	MUTUINI	Public did not attend	Chief's Compound	3/11/16

CHAPTER 4: CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The public participation exercise provided an opportunity for members of the public to give their proposals for projects as well as being enlightened on the functions of the county government. The public were also given update on the status of the projects they proposed and that were included in the previous financial budgets for 2015/2016, 2016/2017 and current financial budget for 2017/2018.

Members of the public were discontented at the pace of implementation of the development projects in the county. Most wards expressed great dissatisfaction especially since they had not seen any tangible development projects within their wards since the county government took over from the defunct City Council. In some cases the members of the public declined to give their views since some of them felt that it was a futile exercise since their challenges given in previous consultations have not been addressed. Some even proposed that the suggestions they gave in last financial year be replicated since their priorities have not change.

Many issues arose from the interaction with the public during the exercise but some issues were key and stood out in many of the wards visited, they include;

- Health remains a key issue and most of the public members complained of inadequate staff, drugs, laboratory and maternity services in the health facilities. The public requested that the county government invest a lot more in the health sector.
- On waste management, there were complains of pilled garbage as most trucks have broken down and take long to repair. Majority of the wards proposed that the county government purchase bins or dig pits with cover at the waste collection points rather than leave the waste to spread all over that poses serious health risks.
- Most wards complained of the poor state of their feeder roads which are impassable coupled with poor or lack of drainage. Encroachment on the roads either by traders or other private structures also stood out.
- There were complaints of lack of bus stage/terminus within the estates hence frequent accidents and traffic jam.

- Lack of access to water in informal settlement areas and inadequate public toilets.
- The sewer system still remains a critical issue due to the frequent bursts and inability to handle the waste due to the high population. Most wards requested for total overhaul, expansion of the sewer system and installation of new sewer lines in areas lacking sewer line.
- Inadequate trading space also arose as a challenge and members requested for establishment of modern markets or erection of more modern kiosks.
- Although in some wards, the issue of land grabbing is still prevalent, some wards have
 managed to reclaim the grabbed lands with the support of their leaders and are now
 requesting the county government to move quick and put up development projects or
 even fence before they are grabbed again due to lying idle.
- For the public lands that are still in possession of the private individuals, members of the
 public urged the county government expedite their repossession to avail space for public
 amenities.
- It was also noted most wards needed the county government to continuously carry out civic education and public participation to enlighten them on their development progress and enhance better relations and decision making.

The issues raised during these forums will be consolidated on a ward and sector basis for circulation to all sector working groups for consideration during the finalization of the Sector Reports and budget estimates for FY 2018/2019.